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Company Information
NAIE R

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN SINGAPORE

571 Ubi Avenue 1
#02-17/18 Paya Ubi
Industrial Park
Singapore 408933

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 3708, 37/F

Tower Two Lippo Centre
No. 89 Queensway
Hong Kong

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE
www.fuchangroup.com

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Hwang Hau-zen Basil, Solicitor, Hong Kong
Unit 3708, 37/F

Tower Two Lippo Centre

No. 89 Queensway

Hong Kong
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
29 Jalan Pokok Serunai
Singapore 468164

Mr. Hwang Hau-zen Basil, Solicitor, Hong Kong

Unit 3708, 37/F

Tower Two Lippo Centre
No. 89 Queensway
Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
29 Jalan Pokok Serunai
Singapore 468164

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

HeungKong Capital Limited
Suite 622, Ocean Centre
Harbour City

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Mah Seong Kung (Chairman)
Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek
Mr. Wong Loke Tan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Loke Tan

Mr. Mah Seong Kung

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhi Zhigiang)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Loke Tan (Chairman)

Mr. Mah Seong Kung
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INTERNAL CONTROL COMMITTEE

Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek (Chairman)
Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
Mr. Cui Kewei Joshua

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.0O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
2103B, 21st Floor

148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank Ltd.

12 Marine Boulevard

Level 3, Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

STOCK CODE

2108

BOARD LOT

4,000 shares

4 K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2019

RNEEHEES

BERSSE(EE)
REBRIEE

MERETERNBFERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

ERERNBFETTE

BERREESFECARAT

BB
bld=:!
ERIE 1485

211821038 %
FEFREAT

DBS Bank Ltd.
12 Marina Boulevard

Level 3, Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3

Singapore 018982
B0 K55
2108

B

i}

B

4,000 P19



Chairman’s Statement
TEREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the "“Directors”)
of K2 F&B Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to present to our
shareholders (the “Shareholders”) the annual report of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019").

The year 2019 marks the Group's fifteenth year in operations, and
the Company’s first year of its listing. | am proud and humbled to
reflect on our journey and the people who have contributed to our
success over the years. From the establishment of Fu Chan F&B
Pte. Ltd. (“FCP"), which is the Group's first indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, we have evolved and grown as a business, with the
same commitment and dedication, in full force, that remain to this
day.

From the acquisition of our first food centre in 2007, followed by
the operation of our first air-conditioned food centre in 2009, and
then the purchase of our first corporate headquarters in 2013, to
finally the successful completion of the initial public offering
relating to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
(the “Share Offer” and the “Main Board" respectively) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
6 March 2019 (the “Listing Date").

Operational Review

After the Company's listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 6 March 2019, in aligning with its business strategy,
the Group utilised approximately S$7.2 million of the listing
proceeds to acquire two Singapore properties located in the
Chinatown district and the north region of Singapore.

On 14 February 2020, the Group further established its presence in
the Chinatown district by exercising its options pursuant to the
option agreements with three independent third parties of the
Group, to acquire nine shop units in a mixed-use commercial and
residential development for S$22.2 million. The present intent is to
open an air-conditioned food outlet when the existing tenancy
agreements of the shop units expire. The acquisition of the nine
units was completed on 24 March 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TRHEE(E)

In aligning with the Singapore Government's push towards a
cashless society, the Group is progressively implementing cashless
payment systems for all its food establishments. This has resulted
in improved efficiency of the Group’s cash collection and
management processes.

To cater for the changing lifestyles and to reach out to a bigger pool
of customers, some of the food establishments of the Group have
listed their food offerings on the online food ordering platform.
Customer response from these portals has been encouraging and
orders have increased.

Going forward, the Group will keep abreast of trends and lifestyles
to continue to offer cuisines and services for the changing world.
The Group will also continue to seek out investment properties
with good vields to expand its property portfolio, with the ultimate
aim of achieving superior shareholder value over the long term.

The onset of the outbreak of the coronavirus disease 2019
("“COVID-19") at the end of FY2019 has adversely affected
Singapore’'s economy. Based on estimates from the Singapore
Ministry of Trade & Industry, Singapore’'s economy contracted by
2.2% on a year-on-year in the first quarter of 2020, reversing the
1% growth in the preceding quarter. On a quarter-on-quarter
seasonally adjusted annualised basis, the economy shrank by
10.6% — which is a sharp pullback from the 0.6% growth in the
previous quarter.

Furthermore, since the beginning of 2020, the Singapore
Government has been implementing tough measures to restrict
movements and interactions in public and private places to pre-
empt the trend of increasing local transmission of COVID-19. As
only essential services that support daily needs remain open, food
establishments can only operate for takeaway and delivery services
only and no dine-ins are allowed.

Based on the above, the Group does expect an adverse impact on
sales and will closely monitor the impact of these measures on its
business and make adjustments, where and when necessary. In
the meantime, it has reinforced its training for staff on cleanliness
and hygiene to ensure the quality of its food offerings and has
taken all necessary precautions and implemented procedures to
ensure workplace health and safety for its staff, customers and
suppliers.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TRHEE(E)

Financial Review

For FY2019, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately S$42.0
million, a decrease of approximately 7% from S$45.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (“FY2018"). The decrease was
mainly contributed from the closure of one of the top performing
food outlets and five food stalls from during FY2019. The decrease,
however, was mitigated by the opening of new food
establishments.

In FY2019, the Group recorded a consolidated net profit of
approximately S$5.2 million, an increase of approximately 29%
from S$4.0 million in FY2018. This is largely contributed by the fair
value gain of the Group's properties in FY2019.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Furthermore, besides encouraging innovation, enhancing customer
experience and providing a safe, fair and harmonious workplace
environment, the Group has strived to being good corporate citizen
and neighbour and also gives back to the community through
volunteerism and donation.

In FY2019, the Group donated HK$1 million (approximately
S$174,000) to The Community Chest of Hong Kong in Hong Kong.
The Group further contributed S$287,000 to other recognised
charities in Singapore, including the Sian Chay Medical Institution,
which provides free medical care and medication to the poor and
needy.

On the education front, the Group also provided funding for the
financially needy undergraduate students from the Nanyang
Technological University in Singapore. Not forgetting the Group’s
employees, a study fund for their children was established to
provide support to defray the cost of education. For FY2019, 22
employees of the Group benefitted from this initiative.

The Group and its employees have also participated in the monthly
distribution of hot meals to the less fortunate at the Asian
Women's Welfare Association and one of our new food centres,
which was opened in FY2019, located at Block 529 Hougang
Avenue 6, #01-245, Singapore 530529 (“Hougang Avenue 6")
food centre in the north of Singapore.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TRHEE(E)

In Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to my fellow Directors, management team and staff for their
diligence, hard work, commitment, dedication and contributions
throughout the years, especially in making the initial public offering
a success. Finally, | would like to thank our Shareholders, suppliers,
clients and other stakeholders for their ongoing trust and support.

| look forward to working together with each and every one of you
to achieve further success.

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
Chairman

27 March 2020
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREIERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang) (4<%3%) (“Mr. Chu”), aged
48, has been with the Group since 2004. He is the chairman of the
Board, chief executive officer of the Company, an executive Director,
and a controlling shareholder of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholder”), as well as a member of the remuneration committee
of the Board (“Remuneration Committee”) and a member of the
internal control compliance committee of the Board (“Internal
Control Compliance Committee”). Mr. Chu was appointed as a
Director on 13 March 2018 and redesignated as an executive
Director, the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of
the Company on 30 August 2018. He is primarily responsible for
the overall strategic planning, management and operation of the
Group.

Mr. Chu is an entrepreneur. Mr. Chu has over 17 years of
experience in the food and beverage industry. Since May 1993, Mr.
Chu has been the sole proprietor of E Teng What Fisheries, a
business that is principally engaged in wholesale import and export
and retail of fishes, and he was primarily responsible for the overall
management of the business. Since July 2002, Mr. Chu has been
working in Fu Chan Food Paradise, a sole-proprietor business that
is principally engaged in food and beverage.

Save for being the spouse of Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)
and the father of Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi), Mr. Chu does not
have any relationship with other Directors and members of the
senior management.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SEENEREERE(8)

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun) (BZ=) (“Ms. Leow”), aged
49, has been with the Group since January 2004 as operations
manager of FCP. She was appointed as a Director on 13 March 2018
and re-designated as an executive Director on 30 August 2018. She
is primarily responsible for the day-to-day operation, budget and
strategic planning and administration of the Group.

Ms. Leow has over 17 years of experience in the food and
beverage industry. Prior to joining the Group, from October 1992 to
July 2000, Ms. Leow worked in E Teng What Fisheries as an
operation assistant, being primarily responsible for operation of
business. Since April 2003, Ms. Leow began working in Fu Chan
Food Paradise together with Mr. Chu, being primarily responsible
for operation of business. Ms. Leow has been an operations
manager of FCP since its incorporation in January 2004.

Save for being the spouse of Mr. Chu and the mother of Ms. Chu
Pek Si (Zhu Peishi), Ms. Leow does not have any relationship with
other Directors and members of the senior management.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi) (5:1@1%) (“Ms. Chu”), aged 23, is a
non-executive Director. She was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 30 August 2018. Ms. Chu is the daughter of Mr. Chu
and Ms. Leow. She is responsible for providing strategic advice to
the Group.

Ms. Chu joined the Group in December 2012 and worked as an
administrative assistant until June 2017 during which she was
responsible for providing administrative support to the business
operations and assisting daily operation and co-ordination of the
food centres and food street. Ms. Chu rejoined the Group in April
2018 and has been working as a part-time administrative assistant
of the Group where she is mainly responsible for payrolls and
operations.

Ms. Chu obtained a certificate in supervise construction work in
workplace safety and health (formerly known as building
construction supervisors safety course) and a diploma in civil
engineering with business, in January 2015 and March 2016, both
from Singapore Polytechnic in Singapore respectively. She is
currently pursuing a bachelor’'s degree in engineering with honours
in civil engineering at the Singapore Institute of Technology in
Singapore.

Save for being the daughter of Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow, Ms. Chu

does not have any relationship with other Directors and members
of the senior management.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SEEZNEREERE (8

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Loke Tan (“Mr. Wong”), aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 February 2019. He is the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Board (“Nomination
Committee”), a member of the audit committee of the Board
(“Audit Committee”) and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is responsible for providing independent judgment
on issues of policy, accountability, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Wong has over 30 years of banking experience. His experience
and expertise span across syndicated loans, project financing,
structured trade financing and mergers and acquisitions. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Wong worked in various international banks
including OCBC Bank where he worked from 1989 to 2003 and
was responsible for handling various portfolios of corporate clients.
From July 2003 to his retirement in June 2016, he worked at
Maybank, with his last position held as senior vice president and
head of Singapore main branch business centre in the bank’'s
commercial banking unit, where he built a strong SME portfolio
consisting of many established players in their respective industries
in Singapore.

Mr. Wong is the non-executive director of the following listed
companies:

(a)  Union Steel Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(the "SGX-ST") (stock code: BLA.SI);

(b)  Adventus Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Catalist
board of the SGX-ST (stock code: 5EF.SI); and

(c) International Cement Group Ltd, a company listed on the
Mainboard of the SGX-ST (stock code: KUO.SI).

Mr. Wong is also the non-executive independent chairman of Koyo
International Limited, a company listed on the Catalist board of the
SGX-ST (stock code: KOYO.SI).

Mr. Wong is dedicated to contribute to civic organisations such as
the Saint Gabriel’s School Management Committee in Singapore.
In 2018, he was awarded the silver medallion service award by the
Ministry of Education of Singapore in recognition of his
contributions and services.

Mr. Wong obtained his master of business administration degree
from Brunel University London in the United Kingdom in May 1996.
He later obtained an executive diploma in directorship from the
Singapore Management University and the Singapore Institute of
Directors in March 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SEENEREERE(8)

Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek (EEZ) (“Mr. Loh”), aged 53, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1 February
2019. He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the
Internal Control Compliance Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee. He is
responsible for providing independent judgment on issues of
policy, accountability, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Loh is a practising lawyer in Singapore. He graduated from the
University of Cambridge in the United Kingdom in June 1990. He
then obtained his postgraduate practical course in law certificate
from the Board of Legal Education in Singapore in December 1992.
Mr. Loh was admitted as a fellow of the Singapore Institute of
Arbitrators in August 2011 and was appointed as an adjudicator of
the Singapore Mediation Centre in April 2016. Mr. Loh joined his
current firm, TSMP Law Corporation in Singapore, in September
2001, where he is currently a partner. His practice is focused on
construction and engineering law.

Mr. Loh is also a non-executive independent director of the
following listed companies:

(a)  Vietnam Enterprise Investments Limited, a company listed on
the London Stock Exchange (stock code: VEIL);

(b)  Vibrant Group Limited, a company listed on the Mainboard of
the SGX-ST (stock code: BIP.SI);

(c)  Federal International (2000) Limited, a company listed on the
Mainboard of the SGX-ST (stock code: BDU.SI);

(d)  Adventus Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Catalist
board of the SGX-ST (stock code: 5EF.SI); and

(e) DISA Limited, a company listed on the Catalist board of the
SGX-ST (stock code: 532.SI).

He also sits on the Board of Governors of St Joseph's Institution
International School, a leading private international school in
Singapore, and is a trustee in the St Joseph's Institution
Foundation, a registered charity in Singapore that is an institution of
public character.
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Mr. Mah Seong Kung (B %#M/) (“Mr. Mah”), aged 52, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1 February
2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is responsible for providing independent judgment
on issues of policy, accountability, resources and standard of
conduct.

Mr. Mah obtained his bachelor's degree of accountancy from the
National University of Singapore in 1991. He is also a chartered
accountant of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.

Mr. Mah is an associate partner of Biztrack Consultants Private
Limited, a nominated advisor with the National Stock Exchange of
Australia (“NISX") and a listing advisor with the Dutch Caribbean
Securities Exchange. He is on the board of directors of Mercurius
Capital Investment Limited, a company listed on the Catalist board
of the SGX-ST (stock code: MERC.SI) and | M Quarries Limited, a
company listed on the NSX (stock code: NSX.IM1). Mr. Mah has
over 20 years of industry experience by having worked in
managerial positions of an entertainment content production
company, licensed capital market services advisory firm, public
listed education provider, and as an investment manager of private
equity fund management company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Hwang Hau-zen Basil (Z4/<) (“Mr. Hwang”), aged 48, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 30 August
2018.

Mr. Hwang has been the managing partner of Hauzen LLP since
January 2018. He was previously a partner of Zhong Lun Law Firm
from February 2015 to January 2016 and was the managing partner
of the Hong Kong office of Dechert LLP from November 2007 to
January 2014. Mr. Hwang was the general counsel and joint
company secretary of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group
Limited (stock code: 412), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, from May 2017 to September 2017. He was
an executive director, general counsel and head of development
and investments and member of the executive committee of
Daohe Global Group Limited (stock code: 915), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from February 2015 to
January 2017. He was also an independent director of First
Sponsor Group Limited, a company listed on the Mainboard of the
SGX-ST (stock code: ADN), from May 2014 to February 2017.

Mr. Hwang obtained a bachelors of laws degree from the National
University of Singapore in July 1997, and a master of science
degree in global finance jointly granted by New York University
Leonard N. Stern School of Business in the United States and The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in Hong Kong in
June 2013. Mr. Hwang was admitted as an advocate and solicitor
in Singapore in 1998, as a solicitor in England and Wales in 2000
and as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2004. He holds a solicitor's
practising certificate with the Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr.
Hwang has been a board member of The Singapore Chamber of
Commerce (Hong Kong) since 2007.

Mr. Hwang is currently also the company secretary of Pipeline

Engineering Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1865).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cui Kewei Joshua (£4) (“Mr. Cui”), aged 35, is the chief
financial officer of the Group and a member of the Internal Control
Compliance Committee. He joined the Group in May 2017 as
financial controller and was promoted to chief financial officer in
August 2018. Mr. Cui is primarily responsible for the overall
accounting and financial management, project management,
strategic planning and internal control of the Group.

Mr. Cui has over 10 years of work experience in accounting and
finance. From October 2007 to December 2009, Mr. Cui worked in
Foo Kon Tan GT in Singapore as an audit assistant where he was
primarily responsible for carrying out statutory audit works. From
December 2009 to November 2010, Mr. Cui worked in the
Singapore office of Ernst & Young LLP, with his last position as an
audit senior, where he worked as a team leader in various audit
assignments. From March 2011 to February 2012, Mr. Cui worked
in Mapletree Logistics Trust Management Ltd. in Singapore as an
accountant where he was primarily responsible for preparing
reports related to the compliance with reporting requirements
under the rules of the SGX-ST. From February 2012 to September
2015, Mr. Cui then worked at Cogent Holdings Limited in Singapore
with his last position as assistant finance manager where he was
primarily responsible for the group’s financial reporting, forecast
and budget, SGX-ST compliance and preparation of annual reports.
From September 2015 to April 2017, Mr. Cui worked as financial
controller in Conversant Solutions Pte. Ltd. in Singapore where he
was primarily responsible for managing the company’s accounts,
strategic planning and internal control.

Since June 2017, Mr. Cui has been a director of Capital Asia
Investments Pte. Ltd. in Singapore where he is primarily
responsible for project financing and cash flow planning.

Mr. Cui graduated from Oxford Brookes University in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor of science degree in applied accounting in
July 2007. Mr. Cui has been a member of the Institute of Singapore
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as the Institute of Certified
Public Accountants of Singapore) since December 2010.
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Ms. Koh Poy Poy (£ %) (“Ms. Koh”), aged 41, is the head of
food centre operations of the Group. She joined the Group in
February 2008 as an accounts assistant where she was initially
responsible for accounts related work and assisting in day to day
business operations. Ms. Koh was promoted to the position of
operation assistant in May 2015 and began also to oversee human
resources and operation matters of the Group. In June 2018, she
was further promoted to current position as head of food centre
operations of the Group. Ms. Koh is responsible for the overall
management and oversight of all food establishments , including
but not limited to setting up of new food establishments ,
coordinating with all parties and monitoring compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and licensing requirements across the
Group.

Before joining the Group in February 2008, Ms. Koh worked in
various industries in Malaysia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND PROSPECT

The core business and revenue structure of the Group remained
unchanged for FY2019. The Group's operations are located in
Singapore, as it owns and operates food centres and food streets
in Singapore since 2004. The revenue was principally derived from
the Group's two operating business segments, including (i) the
outlet management operation which involves in the leasing of food
establishment premises to tenants and the provision of
management, cleaning and utilities services to tenants (the “Outlet
Management”), and the food and beverage stalls operation which
primarily involves in the retailing of beverage, tobacco products,
and cooked food directly to consumers such as mixed vegetable
rice, zi char, roasted meat and chicken rice located in food
establishments operated and managed by the Group and third
parties (the “Food and Beverage Stalls”).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group operated and managed a total
of fourteen food establishments consisting of (i) thirteen food
centres, comprising ten non-air-conditioned food centres and three
air-conditioned food centres; and (ii) one food street under the
Outlet Management business segment. The food street is leased
by the Group from an independent third party, and comprises four
food and beverage kiosks, of which three are operated by the
Group under the Food and Beverage Stalls business segment. Of
the fourteen food establishments managed by the Group under the
Outlet Management business segment, one is managed by a food
centre owner who is an independent third party. In addition, the
Group has engaged an independent third party operator to manage
one food centre and also leased three properties to independent
third parties.

The outlook for 2020 is increasingly uncertain as a result of the
outbreak of the COVID-19. A series of precautionary and control
measures have been (and continued to be) implemented across
the Singapore, including but not limited to, (i) restrictions on travel,
(i) quarantine of persons; (iii) heightening of hygiene and epidemic
prevention requirements and; (iv) social distancing. Given the
dynamic nature of the circumstances at both the global and national
levels, it is difficult to predict the magnitude and materiality of the
impact of the COVID-19 outbreak in future reporting periods for
2020. The Group is closely monitoring the developments and
impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on its food establishments,
inventories, supply chains, employees and other various aspects of
its business operations and will review its business strategies
when necessary in order to respond to decisions which may need
to be made quickly in taking account of a fast-changing situation.
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Despite an increasingly challenging start at the beginning of the
year 2020, in March 2020, the Group intends to expand its
presence in the Chinatown district by acquiring nine shop units
with a total area of approximately 530 square metres in a mixed-
use commercial and residential building for S$22.2 million i.e. the
101 UCS. The present intent is to open an air-conditioned food
outlet.

Going forward, the Group will continue to focus on (i) leveraging its
competitive advantages to increase value; and (ii) increasing its
market share in the food and beverage industry in Singapore and
expand to other regions where there are related opportunities. The
Group’s development initiatives mainly include the following:

° continue to expand its presence in Singapore through the
acquisition of new properties or food centres;

° continue to enhance the dining experience by renovating its
existing food centres; and

° continue to invest in technology, such as developing an
information management system and point-of-sale system at
all food and beverage stalls to lead the Group's operations
more effectively and support future expansion and growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The food and beverage industry continues to face a competitive
environment amid increasing consumer demands for online food
delivery service. The Group recorded a decrease in revenue of
approximately S$3.0 million or 6.7% from approximately S$45.0
million for FY2018 to approximately S$42.0 million for FY2019. The
decrease was mainly due to lower revenue from sale of cooked
food, beverages and tobacco products, following the non-renewal
of one food centre and five food stalls, as well as the discontinued
operations of three food stalls with unsatisfactory performance.
During this period, the Group had actively sourced for new food
centres and had successfully opened two new food centres in
2019. Therefore, there was a marginal decline in rental and service
income from lease of premises to its tenants.
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The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue by the  T~EREZF|IZ=ALERIZ 5 HUTZEEAAE -
three categories:
FY2019 FY2018
2019 T E 2018B1 B F &
S$'000 % S$'000 %
F K T % FHRIET %
Sale of cooked food, beverages and HEAR HmAEBEEER
tobacco products 34,068 81.1 36,862 81.9
Rental income from lease of HAMEFAPHASHA
premises to tenants 5,538 13.2 5,673 12.6
Provision of management, cleaningand ~ 12HEE EZR AR
utilities services 3 Bﬁ% 2,398 5.7 2,460 5.5
Total 1@zt 42,004 100.0 44,995 100.0
For FY2018 and FY2019, the sale of cooked food, beverages and  pA20188 M EE K 20198/ NEE  $HEHR -

tobacco products was the Group’s largest revenue contribution,
accounting for approximately 81.9% and 81.1% of revenue
respectively. The revenue generated from sale of cooked food,
beverages and tobacco products decreased by approximately S$2.8
million, or 7.6%, from approximately S$36.9 million for FY2018 to
approximately S$34.1 million for FY2019. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the non-renewal of lease for one food centre at
Block 168 Bedok South Avenue 3 #01-471, Singapore 460168
("Bedok South Avenue 3") and five mixed vegetable rice stalls, as
well as the discontinued operations of three stalls with
unsatisfactory performance.
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HEAR KM EEEERMWZH20188
WEEHNAKI69BEF K TP L28EE
I ITE7.6% E2019 0 BFERLI341 A
SFME T BEARLHEZRAERUR
Block 168 Bedok South Avenue 3 #01-471,
Singapore 460168 ([Bedok South Avenue
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The Group had an engagement with NTUC Foodfare Co-operative
Ltd (“NTUC Foodfare"”), to operate an air-conditioned food outlet
located at 30 Simei Street 3, #01-01, Simei MRT, Singapore
592888 (the “Simei FC Business"”) pending for their actions and
submissions by NTUC Foodfare to the landlord of Simei FC
Business. In April 2019, the Group temporarily opened the Simei
FC Business pending further actions and submissions by NTUC
Foodfare to the landlord of the Simei FC Business. Unfortunately,
the submissions were not satisfactory and the engagement could
not proceed. The Group reached a settlement with NTUC Foodfare
in December 2019 whereby NTUC Foodfare would reimburse the
Group for its losses incurred in relation to the operation of the
Simei FC Business during the temporary opening period in FY2019.
The relevant sum was settled on March 2020. As the Group
continues to expand its presence in Singapore and opened two
new food centres located at (i) 150 South Bridge Road, #01-17
Fook Hai Building, Singapore 058727; and (ii) Hougang Avenue 6
during FY2019.

Rental income from leasing of premises to tenants and service
income from the provision of management, cleaning and utilities
services decreased by approximately S$0.2 million or 2.4% from
S$8.1 million in FY2018 to S$7.9 million in FY2019, mainly due to
the non-renewal of the food centre at Bedok South Avenue 3.

Both revenue streams from lease of premise and provision of
management, cleaning and utilities services are under the Group's
Outlet Management business segment, while sales of cooked
food, beverage and tobacco products is under the Group’s Food
and Beverage stalls business segment.

Fair Value Gain of Investment Properties

Fair value gain of investment properties depended largely, on
economic conditions, property market sentiment and other factors.
Fair value of investment property was determined by comparable
sales method in Singapore. The assessment of fair value of the
investment properties was carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle
Property Consultants Pte Ltd, an established independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group, which
possesses the appropriate qualifications and experience in the
valuation of the investment properties in the Group.
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Cost of Inventories Consumed

The cost of inventories consumed decreased by approximately
S$0.7 million, or 4.1%, from approximately S$17.2 million in
FY2018 to approximately S$16.5 million in FY2019, which was in
line with the decrease in revenue from sale of cooked food,
beverages and tobacco products. The cost of inventories consumed
primarily represented the cost of purchases of food ingredients for
the Group’s Food and Beverage Stalls business segment, including
fresh and frozen meat, seafood, vegetables, eggs, dried food,
canned food and seasonings, as well as beverages, coffee powder
and cigarettes.

Staff Costs

The staff costs were the second largest component of the
operating expenses and amounted to approximately S$11.5 million
and S$11.7 million for FY2018 and FY2019 respectively, which
comprised approximately 25.6% and 28.0% of the revenue for the
respective periods. The increase of S$0.2 million, or 1.9%, from
approximately S$11.5 million in FY2018 to approximately S$11.7
million in FY2019 was mainly due to (i) an one-off goodwill bonus
given to employees (including executive Directors) following the
successful listing; and (i) annual salary increments.

Property Rentals and Related Expenses

The property rentals and related expenses primarily represented
the rental expenses paid for leasing of properties from independent
third parties for the operation of the short-term food and beverage
stalls, food centres and food street. The property rentals and
related expenses decreased by approximately S$1.9 million, or
30.9%, from approximately S$6.2 million in FY2018 to
approximately S$4.3 million in FY2019. The decrease was mainly
due to the purchase of food centre at Block 101 Yishun Ave 5, #01-
93, Singapore 760101, which was previously rented, and the
closure of food centre at Bedok South Avenue 3 and other food
stalls. In addition, food centres and stalls with lease of more than
12 months were capitalised in accordance with IFRS 16 in 2019.
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Management, Cleaning and Utilities Expenses

The management, cleaning and utilities expenses increased
marginally by approximately S$0.1 million, or 1.7%, from
approximately S$1.7 million in FY2018 to approximately S$1.8
million in FY2019. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increased utilities rate and tariffs.

Listing Expenses

The listing expenses was one-off, and primarily consisted of fees
paid to professionals parties in relation to the listing.

Other Operating Expenses

The other operating expenses increased by approximately S$0.3
million, or 14.6%, from approximately S$2.4 million in FY2018 to
approximately S$2.7 million in FY2019. The increase was mainly
attributable to (i) an increase in repairs and maintenance as more
costs spent on maintenance of food stalls and food centres to
improve the ambience and attract more customers; and (ii)
donations to recognised charities in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Finance Costs

The finance costs increased from approximately S$1.2 million in
FY2018 to S$1.4 million in FY2019, which was an increase of
approximately 12.2% mainly due to additional loans taken in
relation to the two properties acquired, as disclosed on pages 291
to 292 of the prospectus of the Company dated 21 February 2019
(the “"Prospectus”).
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Taxation

The income tax expense decreased by approximately 18.3% from
approximately S$0.4 million in FY2018 to approximately S$0.3
million in FY2019. The effective tax rate reduced from 8.5% in
2018 to 5.5% in 2019. These decreases were primarily due to a
decrease in taxable profits of the Group.

Profit for the Year

The increase in the profit after tax was primarily attributable to (i)
the unrealised gain on fair value changes of approximately S$5.1
million in FY2019, approximately S$3.0 million or an increase of
151.2% from approximately S$2.1 million in FY2018 in respect of
the Group’s investment properties; (ii) net decrease in operating
expenses of approximately S$1.1 million, including cost of
inventory consumed, property rentals and related expenses but not
limited to these expenses, primarily due to decline in revenue; and
(iii) lower income tax expenses. The profit after tax increased, but
the operating revenue and profit of the Group decreased.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As all of the operations in Singapore, all of the revenue from
customers of the Group derived from activities in the Singapore.

In FY2019, the proceeds received from the Share Offer were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, the foreign exchange
risk assumed by the Group primarily arouse from movements in
the Hong Kong dollars and Singapore dollars exchange rates.
During FY2019, the Group did not experience any significant
difficulty or impact on its operations or liquidity due to fluctuations
in currency exchange rates. The management will continue to
monitor the foreign exchange exposure and take prudent measures
to reduce foreign exchange risks.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group's key financial
position indicators as follows:

RBEER T BER

MR2019F & 2018412 A31H » AEBHEE
BIBARRIBIRAT -

2019 2018

2019 20184

S$$'000 S$'000

F Frhn3g 7T T I T

Current assets MBEE 15,574 9,526
Current liabilities meaE 10,045 13,431
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBIRE(ABE) T8 5,529 (3,905)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTERITER 56,151 51,392
Equity s 65,142 36,895

The overall net current assets of the Group increased by
approximately S$9.4 million from net current liabilities position of
approximately S$3.9 million in FY2018 to net current assets
position of approximately S$5.5 million in FY2019. The increase
was primarily due to the net proceeds received from the listing
after deducting cash payment in relation to the two properties
acquired, as disclosed in page 290 of the Prospectus.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregate outstanding
bank borrowings of approximately S$56.2 million, increased
approximately S$4.8 million or 9.3% from approximately S$51.4
million in FY2018. The increase was mainly due to additional loans
taken in relation to the two properties acquired, as disclosed in
page 290 of the Prospectus.

These bank borrowings consisted of term loans, secured mortgage
loans and working capital loan. The working capital loan, term loans
and secured mortgage loans related to financing for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and were
secured by the respective assets, corporate guarantee provided by
the Company and personal guarantee provided by a Controlling
Shareholder.
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The Group had unutilised banking facilities of approximately S$4.5
million. The Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances, committed credit lines available
and interest-bearing borrowings which enable them to continue its
business in a manner consistent with the short-term and long-term
financial strategies of the Group.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the interest-bearing liabilities
divided by the total equity as at the respective year/period end and
multiplied by 100%. The Group's interest-bearing liabilities mainly
comprised of bank borrowings for the purchase of the investment
properties.

As 31 December 2019, the Group's gearing ratio approximately
86.2%, decreased from approximately 139.3% as at 31 December
2018. The change in the Group’s gearing ratio was attributable to
increase in the Group’s equity and reserves for FY2019.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was in active discussions
about a property acquisition. However, the acquisition did not
proceed, and option monies furnished by the Group were refunded
in full. Details of the proposed acquisition can be found in the
Group’s announcements dated 21 January 2020 and 22 January
2020.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Since Listing Date and up to 31 December 2019, the Group had no
material acquisition or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures.

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 14
February 2020 and 6 March 2020 and the circular of the Company
dated 17 March 2020. Subsequent to the year end, on 24 March
2020, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, CK Chu
Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“CKC") completed the acquisition of Units #01-
02A, #01-02B, #01-02C, #01-02E, #01-04A, #01-05A, #01-05B,
#01-05C and #01-05D on Level 1 of People's Park Centre, 101
Upper Cross Street, Singapore 058357 (“101 Upper Cross
Street”). The total purchase consideration was S$22,200,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$128,094,000) which was partially
financed by the net proceeds from the Share Offer. As it is part of
the Group's business strategy to expand its presence in Singapore
through the acquisition of new properties or food centres, the
Board believes that the acquisition of 101 Upper Cross Street
would produce commercial results, including (i) foreseeable
increase in revenue, profit and market share for the Group and (i)
greater economies of scale and certainty in costs. Furthermore, the
acquisition of 101 Upper Cross Street would also improve its ability
to withstand ever-increasing rental costs and strengthen its ability
to compete with other industry players.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus, maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout FY2019. The finance department of the Group
is responsible for treasury management functions, which include,
amongst others, researching and sourcing investment options for
further consideration by the management and the Board, and
monitoring the investments on a continuous basis.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD
During FY2019, the Group held no significant investment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any material
contingent liability.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FOR THE LISTING

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed in the Main
Board on the Listing Date for which the Company issued
200,000,000 new Shares at HK$0.75 per Share on the Listing Date,
as set out in the Company’s announcement dated 5 March 2019 in
relation to, among others, the allotment results of the Share Offer.
After deducting related listing expenses, the net proceeds of the

Lo REREFENAR

AAERD ([ ETTASEER T
RAB IR LT B BIRSR0.768 L B1T
200,000,000 FTR& 17 ¥ R ARG HE A
20193 A ANAEHE (AP EE) RNEE
AR NS - RHBRAERE EmHASE - IR
PEBEEMBSRIEFEAN1100EEBT -

Share Offer were approximately HK$110.0 million.

Utilised Balance
Net Approx. % as at as at
Proceeds of Net of 31December 31 December
allocated Proceeds 2019 2019
E2E R H2019% R2019%
Fr&RE REFE 12A318 12A31H
BE BOEM cEA ifeers
(HK$'000) % (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F&x) % (F&x) (F&x)
1. Purchase of outlets 1. BEEH
a. 101 Yishun a. 101 Yishun 34,760 32% (34,760) -
b. 150 South Bridge Road b. 150 South Bridge Road 5,610 5% (5,610) -
2. Provision for future acquisitions 2. HEWBXRTORE
of food centres
a. Purchase price/Renovation a. REE/BF 35,530 32% - 35,530"
3. Repayment of bank loan 3. BERTER 11,110 10% (11,110) -
4 Renovation of existing food centres 4 BEREERDD 5,610 5% (2,677) 2,933
5 Information technology infrastructure 5. fEEHM ([ERHM))
and Systems (“IT") BERRRR AL
a. ITinfrastructure upgrade a. EERMTEMRETR 1,870 2% (68) 1,802
b. Touch screen ordering and E-payment b. BRIEREREFAR 4,400 4% - 4,400
Sub-total et 98,890 90% (54,225) 44,665
6 General working capital 6. —REEES 11,110 10% (11,110) -
Total it 110,000 100%  (653%) 44,665
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Notes:

1. As disclosed on page 116 of the Prospectus, in order to increase its market
share and scale of operations in the food and beverage industry in Singapore, it
is part of the Group’s business strategy to expand its presence in Singapore
through the acquisition of new properties or food centres.

2. Renovation will be carried out gradually to improve overall dining experience.
EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 343 employees
(2018: 360). The Group’s remuneration policies were in line with
the prevailing market practice and were determined on the basis of
performance, qualification and experience of individual employee.
The Group recognised the importance of a good relationship with
its employees. The remuneration payable to its employees included
salaries and allowances.
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Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in
the annual report of the Company for FY2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability. The Company's
corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
During FY2019, the Company has adopted, and save for the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as disclosed in
this report, has complied with all applicable code provisions as set
out in the CG Code. The Group will continue to review and enhance
its corporate governance practices to ensure its continued
compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry with all the Directors and each of the Directors has
confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model Code for
FY2019.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of business affairs and overall and performance
of the Group.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control systems,
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, change
of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial and
operational matters. The Board has the full support of the
management to discharge its responsibilities.

The day to day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to executive Directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the above
mentioned officers.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and the
management has an obligation to supply the Directors with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to
perform their responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company's expense.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to
the board committees of the Company. Further details of the board
committees of the Company are set out on pages 34 to 41 of this
report.

For FY2019, the Board has reviewed the above arrangements for

the delegation of responsibilities to the senior management and
considered it to be appropriate.
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Directors and officers’ liabilities

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnity the Directors for their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual
basis.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, consisting of two
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as detailed below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Loke Tan

Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek

Mr. Mah Seong Kung

During FY2019, there was no change in the composition of the
Board.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section headed "Directors and Senior Management” on pages 9 to
16 of this report.

Ms. Leow is the spouse of Mr. Chu and Ms. Chu is the daughter of
Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 9 to 16 of this report, the Directors have
no other financial, business, family or other material, reference
relationships with each other.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Under the current organisational structure
of the Company, Mr. Chu is the chairman and chief executive
officer. With extensive experience in the food and beverage
industry, the Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Group. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior
management and the Board, which comprise experienced and high
caliber individuals. The Board currently comprises two executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors and therefor has a fairly strong independence
element in its composition.

Independent non-executive Directors

During FY2019, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board. These independent non-executive Directors are seasoned
individuals from diversified backgrounds and industries and one
member has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant
function of bringing independent judgment and advice on the
overall management of the Company. They take the lead where
potential conflicts of interests arise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for
FY2019. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines throughout FY2019.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other, which notice shall not expire
until after the fixed term.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial fixed term of one year commencing from the
Listing Date and will continue thereafter until terminated by not
less than one month’s notice in writing by served by either party on
the other, which notice shall not expire until after the fixed term.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). In accordance
with the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”), all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall submit himself for election by Shareholders
at the first general meeting of the Company after appointment and
new Directors appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself for re-election by Shareholders at the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (the “Annual General Meeting")
after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, monitoring the appointment, re-election and
succession planning of Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspect of the Company's affairs, the Board
has established four Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Internal Control Compliance Committee
(together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated
responsibilities to the Board Committees as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 February 2019
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules and the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and handling any question of resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence, objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards and
discussing with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the commercial of the audit;
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developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services;

monitoring the integrity of the Company’'s financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-year report and
quarterly reports, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

discussing the Company's risk management and internal
control systems with the Company’s management to ensure
that it has performed its duty in having effective internal
control systems. This discussion should include the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

establishing a whistle blowing policy and system for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers and suppliers) so that they can, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company and ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Mah, Mr. Loh and Mr. Wong. Mr. Mah is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The members of the committee possess appropriate professional
qualifications and/or experience in financial matters.
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The Audit Committee reviewed, together with senior management
and the external auditors, the financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2019 and for FY2019, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company, statutory
compliance, other financial reporting matters, risk management and
internal control systems and continuing connected transactions of
the Company.

During FY2019, the Audit Committee held two meetings for
considering the interim results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2019 and the annual results of the Company for
FY2019. Details of the attendance of the members of the Audit
Committee in the said meetings are set out under the sub-heading
“Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 42.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board (which
endorsed the recommendation) that, subject to Shareholders’
approval at the Company’s forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the
Company'’s external auditors for 2020.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1
February 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The written terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
members of the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure in the
development of a remuneration policy;

36 K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2019

orate Governance Report (Continued)

ENZEQHESREIRE RN IXEE — %
ZEE 201996 A30H L7518 A K& 2019 BF X
FEZMBRE  AARMRMA G RAR
B ARFICEEAE  HMUBEHEKSE
B RREEMABZHRARFEHER
2o

R2019BRFE EZEZESERTRAE
% UWBEARAREZ=20199F6 A308 LR
R ZHHEEERANDNBR2019MBFE 2
PHEEE - ERETEENEN LSRR THE
HEHNENE [EERESFLZEENEHRE
FCBE] DED ©

ERZBRCRAESTSHBARER  RFK
RRARBEERRBFAG 2HEER - B
BEAMMEEMBERAPNEENEZER/RNLNA
20205 2 SN ERAZ BKED

FMEEE

AT 201942 A1 El&i%?%lé%@ 2R
ARAE LHRBIEI 2 ENDERATINE
Eﬂﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁl %ﬁ@ﬂ\i/\amiﬁﬂ‘ﬂg%ﬁ EH

71_/\\$ w?&ﬁﬁmmlﬁ
FHNEZEeNEZACKBAEBRIERTRRN

s HRARFEZRBEZFLSREEBBAEN

T R - LA Bk 5 5T 5 I Ik
ERVIHHASHENEFAESS
Rt



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TERER®RE (B)

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of all individual executive Directors and members of
the senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

° reviewing and approving the management’s performance-
based remuneration proposals by reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives from time to time; and

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associate(s) is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee comprises an executive Director Mr.
Chu and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Loh, Mr. Wong and Mr. Mah. Mr. Loh is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

During FY2019, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to
review the remuneration policy and structure and to make
recommendations to the Board on determining the annual
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and members of
the senior management and other related matters.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Remuneration
Committee in the said meetings are set out under the sub-heading
“Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 42.
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Details of the fees and other emoluments paid or payable to the
Directors and the five individuals with the highest emoluments are
set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for FY2019 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”) respectively.

The remuneration paid to members of the senior management by
band during FY2019 is set out below:

orate Governance Report (Continued)
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Number of Individuals

In Singapore dollars (“S$") BT AN oo ([ Froc 1) &t A
0-200,000 0-200,000 2
Nomination Committee REZEE®

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 1
February 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include but are not limited to:

° reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
skills, knowledge, professional qualifications and industry
experience) of the Board at least on an annual basis and
making recommendations on any proposed change to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals who are suitably qualified to become
Board members and selecting or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

° assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
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making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company; and

developing and reviewing the policy of the Board on diversity
and measurable objectives for implementing such policy from
time to time and adopted by the Board and reviewing
progress on achieving the objectives.

The Nomination Committee consults the chairman of the Board
about his proposals relating to the process for Board appointments
and for identifying and nominating candidates as members of the
Board.

The criteria for the Nomination Committee to select and
recommend a candidate for directorship include the candidate's
skills, knowledge, experience and integrity and whether he/she can
demonstrate a standard of competence commensurate with his/
her position as a director of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria
and procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director. Details of
the Nomination Policy are set out under the sub-heading
“Nomination Policy” on pages 45 to 46.

The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate
include, inter alia, his/her academic background and professional
qualifications, relevant experience in the industry, character and
integrity and whether he/she can contribute to the diversity of the
Board as detailed in the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”). Details of the Board Diversity Policy are set out
under the sub-heading "“Board Diversity Policy” on page 44.
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The Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong, Mr. Mah and Mr. Loh. Mr.
Wong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During FY2019, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
review composition of the Board, review the Nomination Policy,
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors
and recommend the Board on the re-election of Directors.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Nomination
Committee in the said meeting are set out under the sub-heading
“Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 42.

Internal Control Compliance Committee

The Company established the Internal Control Compliance
Committee on 1 February 2019 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code.

The principal roles and functions of the Internal Control Compliance
Committee include the following:

° monitoring and ensuring the Group’'s compliance with
Singapore laws, rules and regulations as applicable to the
Group’s operations;

° providing status reports to the Board on a regular basis;
° engaging external advisers where necessary; and

° taking all necessary measures as it thinks appropriate to
ensure the aforesaid measures are properly implemented.

The Internal Control Compliance Committee comprises an
executive Director Mr. Chu, an independent non-executive Director
Mr. Loh and a member of the senior management team Mr. Cui,
Mr. Loh is the chairman of the Internal Control Compliance
Committee.
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During FY2019, the Internal Control Compliance Committee held
one meeting, to review the Company's policies and practices on its
internal control and policies and practices and compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Internal Control
Compliance Committee in the said meetings are set out under the
sub-heading “Attendance Records of Directors and Board
Committee Members” on page 42.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code:

° developing and reviewing the Company’'s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and members of
the senior management;

o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During FY2019, the Board had reviewed the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance issues, the Company'’s
compliance with CG Code, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines,
and the disclosure in the corporate governance report, and it
monitored the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and members of the senior management.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND EENEEZEEREHFERLHE
BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board, Board S&ER2019FMKFEERITNEETS - &
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company ZZE8e@@:3:NAARKRE RS 2 HFELLeE,
held for FY2019 is set out in the table below: AT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

EERY/EERY
Internal
Control Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Compliance General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
R
Name of Directors EEfS EZE® BiZEe  ¥MZEE  REEEE  SKZEE  RRBESAE
Executive Directors YiTEs
Mr. Chu St 44 - n - 11 i
Ms. Leow Bt 4/4 = - - - i
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Chu Kot 4/4 - - - - 1
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Wong & 444 2 i 1" - i
Mr. Loh BiE 44 22 Ui 11 mn "n
Mr. Mah oi4 4/4 22 i 1 - 7n
Senior Management BREER
Mr. Cui EEE - - - - " 7
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TEERHRE (B

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

The Company will from time to time arrange continuous
professional development training to the Directors such as
internally-facilitated briefings and provision of reading material on
relevant topics to ensure the Directors keep abreast of regulatory
developments and changes in order to effectively perform their
responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. All Directors are also encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expense.

The following Directors pursued continuous professional
development and relevant details are summarised as follows:

ESNHHEERER

RARBIHAESTHBERIERES
WMANEE R R IR EREEROMEN R BR
EETEREERRENEEUABEITER
I IHREEENBEBR THEESELAR
BB - AARIEET A ES L FRABEIR
2 BRBAARDARE-

THERLETHESERR  FRAFBEHM
LI

Attended

services/ Reading

briefings materials
Name of Directors EENA HERE,EHAN MEM R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chu KkE Vv Vv
Ms. Leow Bt v vV
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Chu Kzt Vv Vv
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. Wong Wong 5t 4 Vv Vv
Mr. Loh Bk Vv Vv
Mr. Mah %At Vv Vv
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, the Board
has adopted Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board.

The Board sees diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board's composition,
the board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service and any other factors that the Board might
consider relevant and applicable from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensure that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

At present, the Nomination Committee considers that the updated
Board Diversity Policy is sufficient to serve the purpose and will
review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee.

The Company has adopted Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of
Directors and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

° Character and integrity;

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company'’s
business and corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

° Requirements of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors;

° Independent non-executive Directors in accordance with the
Listing Rules; and

° Directorship in other public companies and corporate
governance structure of these companies; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
Committee(s).
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TERER®RE (B)

The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director is
summarised as follows:

nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any
member of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

° evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all
selection criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy;

° performing due diligence in respect of each candidate and
making recommendation for the Board's consideration and
approval;

o in the case of the nomination of an independent non-
executive Director, assessing the candidate’s independence
under the relevant code provisions from the CG Code and the
Listing Rules;

o where nominating an independent non-executive Director for
election at general meetings, having due consideration of
matters under code provision A.5.5;

° in the context of the re-appointment of retiring Directors,
reviewing the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance and making recommendations to the Board and/
or the Shareholders in connection with his/her re-election at
general meeting; and

° convening a meeting of the Board to consider the
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an on-
going basis and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and they can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for
implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including project management, sales and leasing, financial
reporting, human resources and information technology.

All divisions/departments have conducted internal control
assessment regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the
business of the Group and various aspects including key operational
and financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self- evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm
that control policies are properly complied with by each division/
department.

During FY2019, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experiences, training
programmes, internal audit and financial reporting functions. In this
respect, the Audit Committee communicates any material issue to
the Board.
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The internal auditor is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. The internal audit function examined
the key issues in relation to the accounting practices and all
material controls and provided its findings and recommendations
for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee, as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls, during FY2019 and
considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The
annual review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit
function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant
resources.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for FY2019.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainty relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 104 to 110.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for FY2019 is set out below:

BB &=

R 2019 /1 BUF E L X BOR TS M SRR BURTS B
NARRIMNEZZETE R S EHAAR D
ARSI ESIIT -

Fee Paid/Payable

ENEBA ENEA

(S$'000)

Service Category BRI (FFFET)

Audit service ZEART%

— annual audit services — FEZERD 132

— listing services (included in listing expenses) — R GIALETRAX) 781

Non-audit service IEZ B ARTS =

Total 4BET 912
COMPANY SECRETARY NRME

The Company has engaged Hauzen Services Limited, an external
service provider, and Mr. Hwang Hau-zen Basil has been appointed
as the Company’s company secretary. Hauzen Services Limited's
primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Cui Kewei Joshua,
chief financial officer of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary on corporate governance and board practices
and matters.

ARBDREERRBERA 7%9\\%5)1%%%%
HEREERAERZEREARRRAMWE -
ERRGERABEAR TE’JIxHﬁ%%/\Z%K
NRERMGE EFERE -

ERESONHRERENEZTSERNER
RS A EWERNER KR -
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels and a shareholders’ communication policy
is in place to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure
its effectiveness.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

Procedures for Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting and Putting Forward Proposals at Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company’s company secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two(2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one(21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

The requisition must state clearly the name of the requisitionist(s),
their shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, the agenda proposed to be included
and the details of the business(es) proposed to be transacted in the
extraordinary general meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s).
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiry to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Suite 3708, 37/F, Tower Two Lippo Centre
No. 89 Queensway, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

Fax: (852) 3798 3201

Email: feedback@fuchangroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through the Annual
General Meetings and other general meetings. At the Annual
General Meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
communication policy for the Shareholders which aims at
establishing a two-way relationship, communicating between the
Company and Shareholders and maintaining a website at
www.fuchangroup.com, where up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

During FY2019, the Company has not made any change to the
Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is also available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment of
dividends. The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the
Company and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out
in the dividend policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared
by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to the Shareholders’ approval.
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Directors’ Report
EEGRE

The Directors have the pleasure in presenting the annual report
together with the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated and registered in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 13 March 2018. The Shares were
initially listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the
Listing Date.

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. During FY2019, there
was no significant change in the nature of the Group's principal
activities.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and contribution to the results
by principal operating activities and the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable segments of operations for FY2019 is set
out in note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. All of the
Group's businesses were carried out in Singapore during FY2019
and all of the Group's revenue from external customers was
generated in Singapore during FY2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group as at 31 December 2019
together with the future business development is set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 8 and pages 17 to 28
respectively of this report. A description of the Group's corporate
governance and the Group's risk management and internal control
system is provided in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 29 to 52 of this report. A discussion on the
Group’'s environmental policies, relationships with its key
stakeholders and the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group are provided in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 72 to
103 of this report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Consolidated Financial Statements are set out on pages 111 to
223 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for FY2019 (2018: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed tentatively
from Monday, 22 June 2020 to Friday, 26 June 2020, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
of 2103B, 21st Floor, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 June 2020 or
at another time and/or date as advised.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during FY2019 are set out in note 17 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019 are
set out in note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SHARES CAPITAL
Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company

during FY2019 are set out in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to equity holders comprising share premium and
retained earnings amounted to approximately S$17,261,000
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company during
FY2019 are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 114.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 224 of this report. This
summary does not form part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DONATIONS

During FY2019, the Group donated approximately HK$1,000,000
(approximately S$174,000) to The Community Chest of Hong Kong
and S$287,000 to other recognised charities in Singapore, including
the Sian Chay Medical Institution, which provides free medical care
and medication to the poor and needy.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For FY2019, the Company did not redeem any of its listed
securities, nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase
or sell such securities.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during FY2019 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Loke Tan

Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek

Mr. Mah Seong Kung

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Ms. Chu and Mr. Mah shall
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each
of the independent non-executive Directors and, as at the date of
this report, still considers them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and members of the
senior management are set out on pages 9 to 16.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, under which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years commencing on the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either the Director or the
Company.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for
an initial term of one year commencing on the Listing Date, which
may be terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing
served by either the non-executive Director or independent non-
executive Director or the Company. Under the respective
appointment letters, each of the non-executive Director or
independent non-executive Directors is entitled to a fixed Director’s
fee.

The appointments of the Directors are subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles of
Association. None of the Directors has entered into a service
contract or appointment letter with members of the Group that
cannot be terminated by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” in note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
of this report, no contract of significance was entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during FY2019 or subsisted
as at 31 December 2019 and no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was entered into
during FY2019 or subsisted as at 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” in note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
contained in this report, no transaction, arrangement and contract
of significance to the business of the Group which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or any
entity connected with such a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2019 or
at any time during FY2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest
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Number of Shares
held (Note 1)

Percentage of
shareholding (%)

FrisR &R
E=png B Rty (BtaE1) BREB DL (%)
Mr. Chu Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 600,000,000 (L) 75%
Kok Sy AERER (ME2)
Ms. Leow Interest of spouse (Note 3) 600,000,000 (L) 75%
Bt Ao Bk es (A1aE3)

58 K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2019



Directors’ Report (Continued)
FEEoWmE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONTINUED)

Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the relevant Shares.
2. The entire issued share capital of Strong Oriental Limited (“Strong Oriental”)

is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Chu. Accordingly, Mr. Chu is deemed
to be interested in 600,000,000 shares held by Strong Oriental by virtue of the
SFO.

3. Ms. Leow is the spouse of Mr. Chu. She is deemed to be interested in all the
shares in which Mr. Chu is interested or deemed to be interested by virtue of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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2. Strong Oriental Limited ([ Strong Oriental ]) /)% &
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
FEEWmE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the following corporation (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest

FERRRKROREERDVERS

MN20195F 128318 - U TEB(ESH AR
AIEZBITHRA BBRIN) FRRRD B A i 8 A AR
BEAEMIEEAEIB6IEATEE 2 S LM
AR SAB T ¢

RAERREBRNER

Number of Shares
held (Note 1)

Percentage of
shareholding (%)

FrERGOE A
BREHSA B1ip fEmiuEg (K1) HBREBDH (%)
Strong Oriental Beneficial Owner 600,000,000 (L) 75%
EmBEAA
Note: Bt -
1. The letter “L" denotes the person'’s long position in the Shares. 1. FHIL EZBALTRRG ZHE -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no other R EXFTHEEIN - 7R2019F 12 4318 » #

corporation which/person (other than a Director or the chief
executive of the Company) had any interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
FEEoWmE(E)

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and members of the senior
management of the Group are decided by the Board by reference
to the recommendation given by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group for FY2019 are set out in
notes 11 and 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For FY2019, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors has waived any emoluments for
FY2019.

Saved as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or
are payable, for FY2019, by the Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons,
including the Directors and employees of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (ii) require the Company to enter into
any agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing the
Shares were entered into by the Group during FY2019 or existed
as at 31 December 2019.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during FY2019 under review or as at 31 December 2019
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities including debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
2HE(E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed
on 1 February 2019, the Company adopted a share option scheme
conditional upon the Listing (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date. As no
share option has been granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme since the Listing Date, there was no share option
outstanding as at 31 December 2019 and no option was exercised
or cancelled or lapsed during FY2019.

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is enable the Board
to grant options to Eligible Persons (as defined below) as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group and to recruit and retain high calibre
Eligible Persons and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

(b) Eligible persons

The Directors may at any time and within a period of ten (10)
years commencing from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme at their absolute discretion and subject to
such terms, conditions, restrictions or limitations as they may
think fit offer, at the consideration of HK$1.00 per option, to
grant option to any person belonging to the following classes
of participants (the “Eligible Person(s)")

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time
or part time, including any director) of any member of
the Group or invested entity; and

(i) any supplier of goods or services, any customer, any
person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support, any Shareholders or other
participants who contribute to the development and
growth of the Group or any invested entity.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

-

RS (B)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

(i) The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be allotted and issued upon the exercised of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue
from time to time.

(i) The total number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000 Shares, being 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of
this report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

Unless approved by the Shareholders in general meeting and
subject to the following paragraph, no option shall be granted
to any Eligible Person if any further grant of options would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the twelve(12) months period up to and including such further
grant would exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue from time to time.

Where an option is to be granted to a substantial Shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director (or any of their
respective associates), and such grant will result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in the twelve(12) months period up
to and including the date of such grant: (1) representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue
at the relevant time of grant; and (2) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant shall not be
valid unless approved by the independent Shareholders in
general meeting.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EE5THE(E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

(9)

64

Period within which the securities must be
exercised under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

Performance target or minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised

There is no performance target that has to be achieved or
minimum period in which an option must be held before the
exercise of any option save as otherwise imposed by the
Board in the relevant offer of options.

Period for and consideration payable on acceptance
of an option

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Person within the date as specified in the offer letter issued
by the Company, being a date not later than twenty-one(21)
days inclusive of the date upon which it is made, provided
that such date shall not be more than ten(10) years after the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme or after
termination of the Share Option Scheme, and no such offer
may be accepted by a person who ceases to be an Eligible
Person after the offer has been made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1. Such
consideration shall in no circumstances be refundable.
Subject to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, option may
be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any time
before the expiry of the period to be determined and notified
by the Board to the grantee which in any event shall not be
longer than ten(10) years commencing on the date of the
offer letter and expiring on the last day of such ten(10) years
period.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

SEHRE(EB)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
(h) Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as determined by the Board, and shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant an option (the “Offer Date”), which must be a
trading day, on which the Board passes a resolution approving
the making of an offer of grant of an option to an eligible
person; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share on the Offer Date.

(i) Remaining life

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, after which
period no further option shall be granted.

COMPETING BUSINESS

During FY2019, none of the Directors, the Controlling Shareholders
or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business (apart from the business of the Group)
that competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group other than being a director of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
TE2RE(E)

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Mr. Chu and Strong Oriental, each being a Controlling Shareholder
have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 1 February 2019
in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-Competition”),
pursuant to which each of them had irrevocably undertaken with
the Company on joint and several basis (for itself and for the
benefit of each of the subsidiaries) that he/it would not, and would
procure that any of his/its associates (except any member of the
Group) would not, during the period from the Listing Date, to the
date when the Controlling Shareholders or their associates cease
to hold equity interest in the Company and they are not considered
as substantial Shareholders directly or indirectly, either on his own
account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, among other things, carry on, participate or be interested
or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether as a
shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director, employee or
otherwise) any business which is or may be in competition with
the business of any member of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of Deed
of Non-competition for FY2019.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with
the non-competition undertaking and the non-competition
undertaking has been enforced by the Company in accordance with
its terms for FY2019.

Saved as disclosed above, during FY2019, none of the Directors,
the substantial Shareholders or the management Shareholders or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
FEEoWmE(E)

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company does not have any
other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of
the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment
letters, no contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
was entered into or in existence as at 31 December 2019 or at any
time during FY2019.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during
FY2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of business, the Group's customers for the food
and beverage retail business were mainly individual customers who
patronise its food and beverage stalls, and customers for its outlet
management and leasing business were mainly stall tenants who
rent food stalls in the Group's food centres and food street. There
was no single customer that accounted for more than 5% of the
total revenue for FY2019.

Under the outlet management and leasing business, the Group
typically enter into tenancy agreements with stall tenants for the
rental of food stalls for terms ranging from one to two years.
Generally, such tenancy agreements the Group enter into with stall
tenants contain key terms such as the licence or lease period and
commencement date, the monthly licence fees or rental and the
minimum daily operating hours by the tenant.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
FEEWmE(E)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

For FY2019, total revenue attributable to the top 5 tenants
amounted to approximately S$1,536,000, or approximately 3.7% of
the total revenue, while approximately S$441,000, or 1.0%
attributable to the largest tenant. For FY2019, purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted to approximately
S$8,150,000, or 39.2% of the Group's total cost of inventories
consumed and property rentals and related expenses, while
approximately S$2,392,000, or 11.5% of the relevant cost from the
largest supplier.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), or any Shareholder
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the issued Shares) had any significant beneficial interest in the
Group's five major customers or the Group's five major suppliers.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND GUARANTEES TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had not provided any financial
assistance and guarantee.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER'’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, save and except for the compliance
adviser's agreement entered into between the Company and
HeungKong Capital Limited (the “Compliance Adviser”), neither
the Compliance Adviser nor its directors, employees or close
associates had any interest in relation to the Company which is
require to be notified to the Group pursuant to Rule 3A.23 of the
Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
FEEoWmE(E)

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Sufficient resources and training have been allocated and provided
to ensure the on-going compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. During FY2019, the Board is not aware of any
incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group’s business where the
Group is operating and the Group has complied in material respects
in the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the subsequent events are set out in note 38 to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained the public float (i.e. at least 25% of
the Company’s total issued Shares was held by the public) as
required under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for FY2019
are set out in the note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
and none of the related party transactions constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction subject to
independent Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
FEEWmE(E)

Nne=<

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed, with the management of the
Company, the Consolidated Financial Statements, and the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as
well as preserving the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the CG
Code as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, save for the deviations as disclosed
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 29
to 52 of this report, the Company has complied with the relevant
code provisions contained in the CG Code during the Review
Period.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance.

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be found
in the section headed "“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 29
to 52 of this report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or exercising of any
right in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

SEHRE(EB)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages or
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duties. The relevant provisions in the Articles of Association
were in force during FY2019 and as at the date of this report.

Throughout FY2019, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity
against liability, including but not limited to liability in respect of
legal action against the Directors and officers thereby sustained or
incurred arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her
offices.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of
the Company is to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

MR. CHU CHEE KEONG (ZHU ZHIQIANG)
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Singapore, 27 March 2020
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiR - g NEVATRE

INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group based in Singapore with more than 15 years of
experience in the ownership and operation of food centres and
food street. Currently, the Group's business operations include the
(1) Outlet Management and (2) Food & Beverage Stalls.

This environmental, social and governance report (the "ESG
Report”) summarises the environmental, social and governance
(“"ESG") initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and
demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has assigned staff from relevant departments assisting
in data collection and compilation of the ESG Report. The assigned
staff would periodically report to the senior management, assist in
assessing, identifying and managing risks of the Group on ESG
aspects, and whether its internal control system is appropriate and
effective. The senior management reviews the ESG performance
of the Group, including environmental, labour practices, and other
ESG aspects. The senior management sets the tone at the top for
the ESG strategies, and is responsible for ensuring effective risk
management and internal controls.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

Unless specified otherwise, this ESG Report covers the Group's
overall sustainability performance, including its head office, food
establishments and food stalls, which represent the Group’s major
sources of revenue. The ESG key performance indicator (“KPI")
data is gathered and included subsidiaries under the Group's direct
control. The Group will extend the scope of disclosures when and
where applicable.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

R - g RERkE (8)

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG
Reporting Guide") as set out in the Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Information relating to the corporate governance practices of the
Group has been set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 29 to 52 of this report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group for FY2019.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Company values its stakeholders and its feedback regarding its
businesses and ESG aspects. In order to understand and address
their key concerns, the Company has maintained close
communication with its key stakeholders, including but not limited
to employees, shareholders and investors, customers and tenants,
suppliers, government and regulators, media, non-governmental
organisations (“NGOs") and the public.

The Company takes stakeholders’ expectations into consideration
in formulating its businesses and ESG strategies by utilising
diversified engagement methods and communication channels.
The following table shows stakeholders’ expectations to the Group
and related communication channels.

W|EELR
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HEHE

ARE - @ REAREFAAEERN2019
MBREEERRE 1S REREEAEE - Bk
B K P EREREVFE 36 o

K ESH

ARRERFNEREHARNRAHER MR
BonEeMERFENRE - BT HMEIER
ENEIFEE AR -HEEIBHNELR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - g kEREmE ()

Stakeholders

Communication channels

Expectations

B0 E BERE e
Employees o Trainings, seminars and briefing ° Employee health and safety
sessions o Employee development and training
° Regular meetings o Compliant operation
° Performance reviews
(= . E3 - AN e RERE s REERRHEZE

Shareholders and investors

BREREE

Customers and tenants

EFREP

Suppliers

e
Government and regulators

BT M B E AR

Media, NGOs and the public

0/e

1REe - FBURMABE AR

e TEHgR

o  BREZ

° Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings

o Financial reports

o Announcements and circulars

° Company website

s REBFAGRAMKRRAREG

o HIEWmE

o YN & Gl

e REAFL

° Customer satisfaction survey

° Progress meetings

m@ﬁ
Bk
j
]
(i

S
e EEE

o Supplier management meetings
and events

° Supplier audit

e HMERETEEHENLED

o  (HEmES

° Site visits
L4 aﬂﬂ%m

° Company website

° ESG report

o DAL

e IR HEREBWE

s  EEEBREREI

. AMEE

o Compliant operation
° Anti-corruption

AmE
&)

X1 o
i Dﬂ]’

o Food safety and quality

o Quality of products and services
provided

° Protection of customers’ and
tenants’ privacy

° Compliant operation

e RAmTERHEE

e FRHEMREBHNES

e RETFFPREFILE

e HSHREE

° Fair and open procurement

o Sustainable development of supply
chain

o RFRFERE

o  HEBMAIRERRE

o Compliant operation

o Payment of tax

e SHREE

LI AV

o Transparent information disclosure

o Community service

o  HERANEEEKE

o IRARTS

The Company aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve

its ESG performance and create greater value for the wider

community on a continuous basis.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

R - g ReEnks (8)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’s respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the ESG Report
to assist the Group in reviewing its operations and identifying
relevant ESG issues and assess the importance of related matters
to its businesses and stakeholders. Based on the assessed
significant ESG issues, a data collection questionnaire was
prepared to collect information from relevant departments and
business units of the Group.

The following matrix is a summary of the Group's material ESG
issues included in this ESG Report.

BE L

EEERAGEIREENE THESERR
ARE @ MEARE B AKERTE
2ELRBAAERE HehERAFENGE
ZEZEHEEBMBNENERNE - REK
AHEMEARRE @ REREE  RIIRR
BHERS - WRASEMEAEI MERGE
YANE SRR

THEREERARERE - @ REAREMEAN
SENERRE HEKEAREE:

2019 MATERIALITY MATRIX

Food safety and quality
Y 2019 F EE M 5ERE ARR2REE
% Employment and
5 Food waste labour practices
P 512 EMRETER
o ¢ ¢
<Z)< Energy consumption
g e
ﬁ “%ﬂlﬂ RERUBRE Development and training
z ;31\\0\; FRRE
= g Water co‘nsympﬂon
2w KRR
il iCK b Health and safety
[AJIPAN ‘Sustaljnab\e Community investment femazne
2 X ingredients ko
o i1 RIRRRM LRSS Supply chain management
B = > TR
i
o -
T ﬁg Responsible marketing Ant\égggﬂon
g« BEEOTSEH '
< i *
= =
27
g 7
]
O
=z
]
o
=
o
=z

SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

-

RE R
During FY2019, the Group confirmed that it has established
appropriate and effective management policies and internal control
systems for ESG issues, and confirmed that the disclosed contents
are in compliance with the requirements of the ESG Reporting
Guide.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - g kEREmE ()

CONTACT DETAILS B A&

The Company welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and AR QT ENER D HIREE B REE - KE0E
suggestions. They can provide valuable advices in respect of the & % ix & F = feedback@fuchangroup.com 12
ESG Report or its performances in sustainable development by HERIRE & NEGHRENANQ BEA]

email at feedback@fuchangroup.com. BEREITENRBENEEER -
A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RIE
A1. Emissions A1, HERBW

The Group has integrated the “Green Environment” RERB[GERE | MAERSE
into its decision-making process and embraced the BIE - WAEAIRIRIES A HERE
responsibilities to create an environmentally sustainable EBRNET - BINREIREERE
business. To enhance its environmental governance & B IR B E A B &
practice and mitigate the environmental impacts AEBDEBTHNERRBITENA
produced by its operations, the Group has complied MHEEERETE W ORRE
with the requirement of all relevant policies in the REBITHEEMT - ERIAEE
Singapore’s food industry, and committed to the social RIEBME  ANEECD RIS ER
responsibility of protecting the environment. FHHEHEBRELEBETELE - Si/KKRED
Considering the Group’s business nature, it has taken HWERTENERERERRR - K&EM
measures to facilitate the environmental-friendliness of = REEBESETHIRTTEIRIE
its business and operation in terms of energy, water BEIRREE  UERNBERMEERS
and resources saving. In the long run, it will continue to HIRAIRIFE R o

enhance its environmental management strategies in
monitoring and minimising the environmental impacts
brought by its businesses regularly.

During FY2019, the Group was not aware of any R20198 B E - RNEBE I AA
material non-compliance with the relevant B WEBREEREEREERER
environmental laws and regulations in Singapore, (BIEETREPEF NGB CGRERE
including but not limited to the “Environmental EEIRIRE)) ﬁﬁ‘%TZIK%%@%
Protection and Management Act” of Singapore, that REAFEMNIE

have a significant influence on the Group's operations.
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Emissions

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group's businesses focus in the provision of food
and beverage, with limited use of motor vehicles for
travelling. Hence the Group generates limited exhaust
gas emissions during its operation and regards exhaust
gas emissions immaterial or insignificant to its
operation. It has adopted the following measures to
mitigate the exhaust gas emissions:

° Remind employees to turn off engines for idling
vehicles; and

° Encourage the use of public transportation for
business commuting purposes.

The awareness of employees on exhaust gas emissions
has been enhanced through the implementation of the
above measures.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

The Group is committed to contribute through more
efficient use of resources and implemented waste
management into all areas of the business, where
possible. It has installed and used appropriate
equipment and, regularly inspected, maintained and
repaired ventilation system, with the aim to lower the
GHG emissions and reduce non-hazardous wastes
generation.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Due to its business nature, the principal direct GHG
emissions of the Group are generated from
consumption of fuels for kitchen operation and vehicles
(Scope 1). The principal energy indirect GHG emissions
of the Group are generated from purchased electricity
(Scope 2). During the FY2019, the summary of GHG
emissions and its intensity were as follows:

MR ASENEREE AT EH
BAERBHMREBEEERE
WEOREDEFE (BE) - AEEW
FERREZ R ERELRRE
BEN(HE2) - R2019W R F
B REREHNELETERE
L

Indicator’ Unit 2019
BE1 By 2019 %
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCOe 503.29
BEERERBYHE (HE1) U=

Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCOe 1,747.96
REREEAEREBHNE (SBE2) WE—SEALIRE 2

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) tCO,e 2,251.25
RERBHERES (BE1/M2) W= &1t

Intensity of total GHG emissions tC0O,e/S$ million revenue? 53.60

BRERBHNMEETE

Notes:

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute
and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
the latest released emission factors of Singapore’s power grid
basis, “Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Measurement and
Reporting Guidelines — Appendix to Part II: Monitoring Plan”
(Version 14 February 2018) issued by the National Environment
Agency of Singapore, “How to prepare an ESG Report? —
Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued
by the Stock Exchange, "Global Warming Potential Values” from
the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2014 (AR5).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately S$42.0 million. Unless specified otherwise, the
data is also used for calculating other intensity data.
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The Group has adopted the following measures to
mitigate the direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) in its
operations:

o Appoint head chefs to supervise the staff to turn
off gas stoves and water heaters when not in use;

° Clear and defrost unwanted materials and thick
ice regularly from refrigerators;

° Install energy saving cooking facilities and
equipment in the food centres; and

o Set up an area in each of its food establishments
for qualified contractors to collect and disposed of
used cooking oil and grease trap wastes.

Consumption of electricity is considered as the most
significant source of energy indirect GHG emissions
(Scope 2). To reduce energy consumption, the Group
has implemented measures as stated in “Energy
Consumption” of Aspect A2 below in order to enhance
energy efficiency and minimise carbon footprint.

Sewage Discharge

During daily operation, the Group generates domestic
sewage mainly in the course of food preparation and
cleaning. The Group has rigorously monitored the
disposal of sewage, and complied with relevant laws
and regulations to meet local government sewage
discharge standards. Since the Group's sewage are
discharged through the municipal sewage pipe network
to the regional water purification plant, its sewage
discharged amount is considered as the water
consumption amount. Hence, the performance of
sewage discharged will be disclosed in the section
headed "“Water Consumption” in Aspect A2.
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Waste Management
Hazardous waste handling method

Due to the Group’s business nature, it will not generate
any hazardous waste during its operation. Yet, it has
established guidelines in governing the management
and disposal of hazardous wastes. In case there is any
hazardous waste produced, it must engage a qualified
chemical waste collector to handle such waste, which
is complied with the relevant environmental regulations
and rules.

Non-hazardous waste handling method
Food Waste

The Group’'s wastes mainly come from Food and
Beverage Stalls, including non-hazardous wastes such
as leftover. With the aim of minimising the
environmental impacts from non-hazardous wastes
generated from its business operations, the Group has
implemented guidelines for food ordering and
processing in the section headed Code of Practice in
the Employee Handbook and training manual. The
Group's employees are aware of food waste reduction
and the relative concept. With the controls over food
ordering and processing fully implemented, the Group
is able to reduce food waste effectively and avoid
excessive ingredients and dishes. In a long run, the
Group will strive to streamline its Food and Beverage
Stalls process and to use resources in the most efficient
manner.
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On the other hand, paper printing in the head office is
the main source of paper waste. The Group constantly
encourages all staff to reduce paper usage by duplex
printing and adopting electronic information systems for
sharing information or internal administration
documents. It has implemented the following
procedures to encourage employees to share the
responsibilities in waste management, minimise waste
generations and promote recycling:

o Utilise electronic media for communication;

° Avoid single-use disposable items; and

o Place “Green Message” reminders in office and
food centres.

With the above waste reduction initiatives, employees’
awareness on waste management has been enhanced.

During the FY2019, the amount of non-hazardous waste

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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generated and its intensity were as follows: BEYSERERENT :

Type of non-hazardous waste Unit 2019
EEEEYER B 2019 F
Food waste tonnes 12.62
BT ek A

Paper tonnes 0.50
i 45

Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 13.12
BmEEREVES i

Intensity tonnes/S$ million revenue 0.31
mE e, & B AN T s
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A2. Use of Resources

As a sustainability-oriented corporation, the Group's
places great emphasis on environmental protection to
the efficient use of energy and resources. The Group
strives to optimise resource consumption and takes
initiatives to introduce measures on promoting resource
efficiency towards different stakeholders and adopt
eco-friendly approaches in its operations.

Energy Consumption

Purchased gas for cooking (i.e. LPG and town gas) and
purchased electricity are the major energy consumption
of the Group. The Group aims to minimise environmental
impacts in its operations by promoting energy saving
with various energy-efficient measures and related
policies. Employees are encouraged to execute the
adopted policies and measures in energy consumption.
Regular review is conducted on its energy objectives
and targets to seek continuous improvement in the
Group's energy performance.

Monthly monitoring on the usage of electricity, water
and other resources is implemented. Unexpected high
electricity consumption will be investigated to find out
the root cause and preventive measures will be
adopted. The Group has implemented the following
measures to reduce energy consumption:

Turn off gas stoves and water heaters when not
in use;

o Switch off idle lightings during non-office hours;

° Open air-conditioners at suitable temperature

around 24 degree Celsius; and

° Install LED lightings in office.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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During FY2019, the energy consumption of the Group

R2019M RFE - NREEEER

and its intensity were as follows: HEREZENT :

Type of energy Unit 2019
BERER B 20195
Electricity MWh 4,173.72
EP) RS

LPG MWh 1,952.11
B AR KBS

Town gas MWh 94.11
B JELES

Petrol MWh 85.40
i KBS

Charcoal MWh 39.07
A KBS

Diesel MWh 23.69
g KBS

Total energy consumption MWh 6,368.10
BER BB E JKFL By

Intensity MWh/S$ million revenue 151.62
mE JEELRs B BT T e

Water Consumption

Water consumption of the Group is mainly for daily
operation, including food washing, cooking and kitchen
utensils cleaning. To encourage water conservation, the
Group has identified water saving initiatives and has
adopted water-saving production methods and
equipment to reduce water consumed. It has also
assigned its head chefs and outlet managers to ensure
there is no unwarranted use of water. Furthermore, the
Group has conducted regular maintenance of water
pipes to prevent leakage of water and repair any
defective component. The Group is fully licensed prior
to establishing the Food and Beverage Stalls. It has
been strengthening its waste water practice and
programmes to align with the Group's sustainability
management approach.
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To increase water efficiency, the Group has
implemented the following measures:

o Reduce water pressure to the lowest practicable
level; and

° Fix dripping taps to avoid further leakage and
wastage.

Through the above measures, the Group has enhanced
employees’ awareness on water efficiency.

During FY2019, the water consumption of the Group
and its intensity were as follows:

RESAKEE - NEBCEEIA
T -

o FIKEREERERTTARYF
&

o BEREKHIKEETE - Ee
E—HRRERE -

BRI LR AEERES TEER
HETK B o

2019/ BUAF /& - AR B ) A K
REZFMT -

Water consumption Unit 2019
KIEEFE By 2019 %
Freshwater m? 135,939
R AV /N

Intensity m3/S$ million revenue 3,236.64
wE SR BB T

Due to its operating locations, the Group has not
identified any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
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Use of Packaging Materials BEMBMER

As the Group’s main business is food and beverage, AR ANEBNTEELR SRR K
one of the main services provided to customers AEPIRENEF—BIEREE
includes take-away. Plastic wraps and containers are FEONE - BRUREIR N RS AHEE
major packing materials used in its business operation. BEBEBMANTIEREME - BF
To minimise the usage of the packing materials, the ERVEEMBNER  AEEE
Group has set out guidelines for staff to use packing BEISEBEFRABEMBHITIE
materials reasonably. 3 °

During FY2019, the packaging materials consumption of K209 FE  AEEMNBE
the Group and its intensity were as follows: MEDERREBENT

Indicator Unit 2019
BE By 2019 %
Packing materials tonnes 66
BEMH 2

Intensity tonnes/S$ million revenue 1.57
wE W& B AN ok a5
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

As an on-going commitment to corporate sustainability,
the Group recognises the importance in minimising the
potential negative environmental impacts of its business
operations and maximising the resource efficiency and
waste management. The Group regards environmental
protection as part of the Group's business goals and
strategy, and strives to raise awareness on
environmental issues at work and in life among staff
through education and training, and encourages
employees’ engagement in improving the Group's
environmental performance. The Group regularly
assesses the environmental impacts of its businesses,
supports community activities in relation to
environmental protection and sustainability. It is also
devoted to achieving sustainable development for
generating long-term values to the community and its
stakeholders.

Sustainable Ingredients

In addition, the Group is aware of the influence of the
selection of food source brought to sustainability. There
is rising concerns of the selection of sustainable food
source in society. As a responsible corporation to
protect the environment and promote sustainability, it
does not serve any endangered animal in its dishes,
such as shark fins.
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B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment
Employment and Labour Practices

Human talents are the foundation for the Group's
continuous development. Therefore, employment
policies relevant to health, safety and welfare were
established to present the Group's responsibility
towards employees. The Group is strictly in compliance
with various legislative law and regulations, and also
seek to implement higher health and safety standards
throughout the Group.

During FY2019, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with employment related laws
and regulations in Singapore, including but not limited
to the “Employment Act” of Singapore that would have
a significant impact on the Group.

Remuneration and Dismissal

To attract and retain talents, the Group strives to
provide an equal working environment for its
employees. The Group has developed a set of sound
employment rules and regulations and made clear
provisions of the rights and obligations imposed on the
employees in the Employee Handbook.

The Group highly appreciates the contributions of
employees to its development hence developed a
comprehensive remuneration package for employees.
The Employee Handbook clearly states the welfare that
the employees are entitled to, such as daily working
hours and annual leave benefits. In addition to offering
competitive remuneration packages to employees,
discretionary bonuses and share options may also be
granted to realise the full potential of employees based
on individual performance. A long-service award is set
up to appreciate employees who worked for the Group
over 5 and 10 years.
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Moreover, the Group is aware of the importance of
education and the potential financial burden posed to
parents. Thus, it has set up the Fu Chan Education Fund
for employees who attain the basic requirements to
apply for in order to minimise their financial burdens.
During FY2019, 22 employees received financial
support from Fu Chan Education Fund to support their
children in education.

In the case of dismissal for misconduct or contravention
of the express or implied terms and conditions of
employment, the Group does not tolerate the dismissal
of employees under any unreasonable basis. The
dismissal process will only be carried out on a
reasonable basis, and dismissal will be notified in
writing when the employee has persistently committed
the offence and has not improved after giving warnings.

Recruitment and Promotion

The Group adheres to the principles of openness and
fairness when recruiting and considers candidates
based on their merits instead of age, gender and ethnic
backgrounds. Candidates are assessed based on their
suitability for the position and potential to fulfil the
Group’s current and future needs.

The Group offers promotion and development
opportunities that is equally applied to all employees.
Through an open and fair assessment system, eligible
employees are offered the opportunity for promotion to
develop their career and stimulate good performance
that can as well benefit the Group. Staff performance
review will be carried out regularly to ensure that all
employees can be recognised by the Group with
respect to their efforts and contributions.
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Diversity, Equal Opportunity and Anti-
discrimination

The Group appreciates the importance of cultural
diversity and is committed to provide an inclusive and
collaborative work environment that is free from
discrimination, physical or verbal harassment against
any individual on the basis of race, religion, colour,
gender, physical or mental disability, age, place of
origin, marital status and sexual orientation. The Group
seeks to establish necessary procedures to ensure all
candidates are treated equally and the employment is in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The following graphs show details of employees as at
31 December 2019:
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B2. Health and Safety

Health and safety of employees in the working
environment is always the utmost concern of the
Group. To ensure a safe workplace for its employees,
the Group has established safety policies and guidelines
which set out the safety procedures and promote safety
at work sites stipulated by the relevant laws and
regulations. The Group is dedicated to provide a safe
working environment and will continue to invest in
resources and devote efforts to reduce the risks
involved in health and safety.

During FY2019, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with health and safety-related
laws and regulations in Singapore, including but not
limited to “"Workplace Safety and Health Act” of
Singapore, that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

Health and Safety

Reinforcing employees’ safety awareness is of crucial
importance to the Group. All newly hired operational
workers are compulsory to participate in the training on
occupational safety and health hazards during the
orientation. To encourage and support newly joined
employees, training buddies are assigned to them to
ensure they are able to adapt to the new working
environment smoothly and follow safety measures. The
Group has also purchased insurance covering the basic
security package.

The measures for fire emergency occurring in certain
buildings or installations are also regulated in the safety
policies and guidelines to assist employees in taking
sensible immediate action should fire accidents occur.
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B3. Development and Training

The Group recognises the valuable contribution of its
talents for the sustainable growth of its business.
Nurturing talents and polishing the skills of its human
capital is crucial in striving for excellence. It is
committed to inspiring its employees for continuous
learning and improving their knowledge and job skills in
relation to food preparation and preservation, customer
services and quality control in different aspects of the
operation. This is achieved through the development of
training strategies that focus on creating values and
serving the needs of its customers, its talents and
society.

Development and Training

The Group understands the importance of keeping its
employees abreast of the new working environment,
job requirements as well as all other safety and
environmental conservation practices at the work place.
Hence apart from on-the-job training, the Group also
provides trainings that are offered by professional
training institutions or experts for its employees.

To ensure its employees have solid knowledge about
correct equipment utilisation and temperature control of
potential hazardous foods, the Group has provided
trainings on food safety and hygiene training on proper
temperature regulation of food and dish ingredients,
factors contributing to outbreaks of foodborne illnesses
and practices to maintain good personal hygiene. The
Group engages National Environment Agency (“NEA")
and SkillsFuture Singapore (“SSG") Approved Food
Hygiene Training Provider to conduct these training
courses for all food handlers.

The Group ensures that there is at least one supervisor
in each outlet to strictly impose food safety and hygiene
requirements during food processing. The Group's team
members receive training in alignment to their job
nature and requirements. The Group continually
assesses the training needs of its staff and emphasises
the importance of continuous learning to enhance their
competency and development.
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B4. Labour Standards

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during
recruitment as defined by laws and regulations. The
Group is committed to eliminating all forms of forced
labour and supporting the effective abolition of child
labour. The Group is fully in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations related to prevention of
child labour and forced labour.

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group has established a complete recruitment
process to examine candidates’ background and official
reporting procedures to handle any exception. The
Human Resources Department of the Group collects
personal data during the employment process and
verifies identity documents of the suitable candidate to
prevent recruitment of child labour. To prevent forced
labour, working hours are clearly specified in related
documents.

During FY2019, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with child and forced labour-
related laws and regulations in Singapore, including but
not limited to “Employment Act” of Singapore that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2019

B4.

T A

REBEREBRERP R EE LR
BASEEIFE T Roa$]45 T - A&EE
AR BB — IR SR HI 45 T
THBERERET AEE2EE
SFRIEET R Hl% TRMRERER
VERR ©

FRIEETREHET

AEEERVBREREAERNT
BIRIERE MR B E R IIMERH
EARERF - AEEANERE
ENEREETREBAER - %
BEABERE AN T 088 A AR
IHHREET - [FILRHSET A
B (e B I DI A TARRT K

R2019 BFE - AEE I T A
BAMBREERIINFET KA
BTHEEEER(BEETRER
FNERNUEBES)) - MEAE
EiEREATZENBENR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

R - g RERkE (8)

B5. Supply Chain Management

Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values its relationship with suppliers
and places heavy emphasis on the management of
potential environment and social risks in supply chain.
Hence the Group has established the principle of ethical
business conduct that all supply chain partners are
required to uphold. Meetings with food suppliers and
other service providers on a regular basis are set out to
ensure the provision of quality dining service to
customers. Food and Beverage suppliers are carefully
selected based on factors including food quality, food
safety management, sources of ingredients, pricing and
other terms, capacity and availability, track record and
reputation, payment method and terms, delivery options
and schedules, etc.

All suppliers are evaluated carefully and subjected to
regular monitoring and assessment to ensure their food
ingredients meet the stringent requirements on a
consistent basis. For other suppliers, the Group selects
based on quality, pricing, payment terms and availability
etc. The head chefs are responsible to check and
inspect the purchased ingredients and food items
before using in the stall. The Group diversifies the
source of key ingredients suppliers to ensure a
continuous supply chain regardless of emergency
cases. In case of non-conformity, the Group will return
the ingredients and food items back to suppliers.
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B6. Product Responsibility

Being in the Food and Beverage industry, the Group
values the quality and safety of its food products and
aim to fulfill customers’ need and expectations. Through
maintaining efficient internal control process, monitoring
its policies and procedures and delivering excellent
customer services, the Group is committed to
improving food quality and services and satisfying its
customers’ expectations.

During FY2019, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations
in Singapore, including but not limited to the “Sales of
Food Act” and “Personal Data Protection Act”
(“PDPA") of Singapore, that have a significant impact
on the Group, concerning advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

Food Safety and Quality

The Group recognises the importance of achieving and
maintaining high food quality standard to the sustainable
growth of the Group. It is its responsibility to ensure
that the food ingredients are safe, fresh and of good
quality upon delivery, in storage and during processing.
All suppliers are evaluated carefully before selection,
and it maintains good relationship only with qualified
suppliers.

To further enhance the quality and safety of food
products, the Group continuously improves its food
ingredients procurement as well as the food production
process. The Group attaches great emphasis on quality
management to maintain high product quality. Apart
from performing regular identification of hazards, the
Group also establishes critical control points and timely
implements effective control and monitoring measures.
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The Group appoints head chefs and supervisors to
monitor quality at each of the food establishments.
Their responsibilities include inspecting the food and
beverage supplies and ingredients, overseeing the food
preparation process and monitoring the dining
environment and kitchen area. Each of the food
establishments are cleaned and sanitised by the
Group's operational workers in accordance with the
policies and procedures.

Customer Services and Privacy Protection

To drive the Group’s continuous improvement, it has
established multiple feedback channels, including email
and fax, to facilitate communication with customers and
to satisfy customers’ needs. The Group has also
implemented a set of procedures to handle customers’
complaints. Complaints received will be further handled
by relevant department and action plans will be in place
promptly to address the identified issues.

The Group takes serious protection of its customers’
confidential information. The policies listed in the
Employee Handbook have been established in
accordance with the PDPA. It seeks to protect the
customers’ information by employing data security
measures such as firewalls and anti-virus software, etc.
The Group’s employees are prohibited to use the
personal information of its clients for purposes not
related to the business context, no matter during
employment or after termination of employment.

Protection of Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights

The Group believes its brand and IP rights are critical to
the success of the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group had registered 3 trademarks of the Company
logo in Singapore for the operation of Food and
Beverage Stalls and 1 domain name. For any
infringement of its IP, the Group will urge infringers to
cease such action. The Human Resources Department
of the Group will take further action if infringement
continues.
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B7.

Responsible Marketing

The Group prohibits the advertisements to disclose
descriptions, claims or illustrations that are not true. By
complying relevant legislations, the Group organises
promotion campaigns and creates advertising materials
to ensure they are reliable, reasonable, and not
containing any deceitful detail or element when
generating advertisements in order to protect
consumers’ interests, rights and benefits.

Anti-corruption
Anti-corruption

The Group believes that integrity and credibility of
employees are vital to the Group's sustainable
development. The Group has zero toleration on any
corruption, fraud and other behaviour violating work
ethics. It values and upholds integrity, honesty and
fairness in the way it conducts businesses.

To achieve and maintain highest ethical standards, the
Group has established the Code of Practice (the
“Code"”) in compliance with related laws and
regulations to serve as the general guideline in
conducting business operations. The principles stated in
the Code highlight that all directors, officers and
employees must observe all anti-corruption laws, rules
and regulations that are relevant to the Group.

During FY2019, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering in Singapore, including but not limited to the
“Prevention of Corruption Act” of Singapore.
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B8.

Grievance Channel

The Employee Handbook sets out internal control
policies and procedures to govern the investigation and
follow-up procedures of reported fraud incidents, and
mandatory for the employees to report any action or
behaviour of bribery or misconduct. A grievance channel
is well-developed.

Community Investment
Community Investment

The Group believes that returning society through social
participation and contribution is a form of showing
corporate citizenship. It also sees the potential to
nurture corporate culture and inspire its employees
towards social concerns in the daily work life. By
participating in activities that contributes to the
community, it can enhance the civic awareness of its
employees and establish correct values for them.

The Group participates in various community activities
to help the needy in society. For example, it has
arranged monthly events to help elders in Asian
Women's Welfare Association (“AWWA"). The Group
is committed to developing long-term relationships with
the stakeholders and sustain its corporate social
responsibility as a part of the strategic development of
the Group.
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RIE - g kEREmE ()

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

Subject Areas, Aspects,

ERBMEXZMAERABDNCRE
HERERBEESDRBTRIK

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE - -EEH - —REE
REARERER it 55 8H
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 : B
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to Exhaust Gas and GHG
emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
—MRHE BRBERANBEREHR - MK R BERWw
WS  BERBEEEYNELS
Hy -
@) BE: &
(b)) BEBTHBITABEAZEZNIEH

KPI'A1.1 (“comply or explain”)

RRERERA V(A BTRERE])

KPI'A1.2 (“comply or explain”)

BREIUERA 2([ FBTRER])

KPI' A1.3 (“comply or explain”)

BREIIERA ([ FETRER )

KPI' A1.4 (“comply or explain”)

RRERIERA A FBTRER )
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EREIRBIEER o

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

PEntE e AR BN EUE -

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.
BERBBENE (UAMTE) RFE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FEEEEEEWEE (EE) RE
E o

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in

tonnes) and intensity.

ELEZERYEE (VAEFE) R

o
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Emissions — Emissions; Exhaust Gas
Emissions; GHG Emissions; Sewage
Discharge; Waste Management
PE — BER - BERBER  RER
BEHER  JA7KBER : RERYE IR

Emissions — GHG Emissions

BEp —

BER BN

Emissions — Waste Management
(Not applicable — Explained)
ey — BEEMER (CNER — B8
)

Emissions — Waste Management

B — EEYE R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - (g kERWmE (B)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls
TEHE  EEH - —REE
RERERER

Description

t:pus

Section/Declaration

x: 103

KPI' A1.5 (“comply or explain”)

RREIIERA ([ FETRER])

KPI A1.6 (“comply or explain”)

BREIIERA ([ FEBTRER])

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BHEA2: ERER

General Disclosure

—RIREE

KPI' A2.1 (“comply or explain”)

BREIIERA2 ([ FETRER])

KPI A2.2 (“comply or explain”)
RREIUERA22([ FBTRER )
KPI A2.3 (“comply or explain”)
R AR RA2 3([ A BTREE )

KPI' A2.4 (“comply or explain”)

BRENIERA2A([ FETRER )

Description of reduction initiatives and
results achieved.

ORISR D& B b M PSR ©

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HEEFEREEEEYNE R
RPN OB BE R FT1S AR o

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.
BREAER(BIEERR - KEREMER
MR BIEER

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.
RENESMERE R KEEERERE

BEREE -

Water consumption in total and
intensity.
BFEKENRTE -

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

T BE IR P AR e 5T 8 R P S AR e

Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

Fa 3 SR EGE A KO =R B AT R
RIRF Ks8I R TSR o

LA
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Emissions — Emissions; Exhaust Gas
Emissions; GHG Emissions
Bentn — BER  BERBEN G RER
BEHERR

Emissions — Waste Management

P — EERYE R

Use of Resources

&RE A

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption
BREA — LB

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption
BREFEA — KRBRE

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption
BRFA — el B

Use of Resources — Water

Consumption

BRER — KRHER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - g kEREmE ()

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
TEHE - EFEH - —REE

RERERER i 58 8H

KPI' A2.5 (“comply or explain”) Total packaging material used for Use of Resources — Use of

finished products (in tonnes) and with  Packaging Materials
reference to per unit produced.

FREIIEIZEA2 ([ FESTRBE]) 2mrAeREMNEE (ABEE) BREA — BEMHER
MEEEBMNGE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3: BRERRXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s The Environment and Natural
significant impact on the environment  Resources
and natural resources.

— MR IR R ﬁ1%ﬁAH%%&%%§ﬁ ERER BRERRKRER
FERNBER

KPI' A3.1 (“comply or explain”) Description of the significant impacts of The Environment and Natural
activities on the environment and Resources — Sustainable Ingredients

natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

FASREBIEIZASN ([ FETRAER]) HAXBEREHRERRAERNERN RERRARER — 0JFERM
TEREERDERBETENITE -

Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1 : EfE
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
—RRHEE EAF R E  BERER - TIER (B
B RE - TERE  Zlk RIER
A B2 ELAth 155388 R AR A #Y
(@) BE: &
(o) BEBTHBEITABEAZENEH
ER RO ER o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B B RE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

awkE ()

General Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
TEHE - EFEH - —REE

RERERER g 5889
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, Employment

RASE AR FRIZ B1.1

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2: REHEZE

General Disclosure

—RRIREE

employment type, age group and
geographical region.

LR - EFER - FRARNRMES (EfF
DHIEBBE -

Information on: Health and Safety
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe
working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
FHERMLZ2TIERRIRERE RS BEEZS
BERMEEN
@) BE: &
(b)) BETHBITABEAZENIEH
ERRRBINEHR o

Aspect B3: Development and Training

FEHE B3 : R KIE

General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on improving employees’ Development and Training
knowledge and skills for discharging

duties at work. Description of training

activities.

BRRMEERTIERENAZE MR BRI
BERVIGR o HETIEE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BoawmE (8)

R - gk

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls
TEHE  EH - —REE
RERERER

Description

t:pus

Section/Declaration

B8 B9

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EMEB4 : 5 T%E|

General Disclosure

—RIEE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

AN LETSARHIBIH

(a) BER: &

(b) ETFHBEITABEATENIEH

EREIRBIER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EEBS : frEEER

General Disclosure
—MR#E
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

102

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.

ERHEENRE R G RR K

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of
redress.

BEAMREERNIRBRREZ S

BE - ERRALBEE RS

g -
(a BUR: &
(b) BFHBEITABERNFZENARS

ERNROINER -
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Supply Chain Management

HiEEE R

Product Responsibility

EmAE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
IRIE - g kEREME ()

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
TEHE - EFEH - —REE
RERERER g 5889

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RESS
General Disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

—AR IR FAM LS PR BEFRERE RES
Hy -
(@) BE: &
(b) BEBFHETAEEARZENHE

EENBROINER -

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEB8 : HEBRE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to  Community Investment
understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’

interests.

—MRHEE BN RSHERTREEMEHRTE HRIEE
EANRREEBEZDEEE T RN =N
R o
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Independent Auditors’ Report
ARV 2 (e ey

HLB B o EH A R

HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K2 F&B
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 111 to 223, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standard Boards
(the “IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

B A RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

FARENEER

FRREFAFESREESNEXHE  BARN
BEEHARENGAMBERRERTRAER
MEEH BFEHRAMBERRERETER
Yt ERERRERENEEE - M TS5
EFREREBNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

BEEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEERNNEEBERETER

Valuation of investment properties

BREYRMGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the inherent level of complex
and subjective judgements and estimates required in
determining the fair values.
EEBNREMELEERFERETFE  RARERE
NEERFHEMIEE - WHIELEEHE KGR -

The Group's investment properties portfolio comprises
food courts located in Singapore and is stated at fair
value of approximately S$104,300,000, accounting for
approximately 81.1% of the Group’s total assets as at
31 December 2019 with a fair value gain on investment
properties of approximately S$5,149,000 recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended as
disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
ERBEMREYMEAEBEMNRITNENERES - 1
&N TFE#) 104,300,000 F I3 LA ER - 1 EEER
2019F 12 A31 BB EERB81.1% - WEWMERTE
W25 475,149,000 ¥ I T E MBI EZ B ILFENERS
BEakEMTERERAER(RGEES VW BREKMT
16) °

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

BEEHREMEHEETHRFEHE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer's scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

o GTEHERIAIERE - RENREEM - W T B
BERDH) TR E R = HE 5K

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuer's
valuation approaches to assess if they meet
the requirements of the IFRSs and industry
norms;

o MEHERMZEEARARTHEE  UTHER
B A BRI BREER RITEEMNRE
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

B A RS ()

Key audit matter

RRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEERNEERRENSER

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REWRME &)

The Group's investment properties are measured using
the fair value model based on a valuation performed by
an independent qualified professional valuer (the
“Valuer"”). As disclosed in notes 5 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements, in determining the
fair values of the Group’'s completed investment
properties, the Valuer has applied comparable sales
method, as appropriate, for respective properties,
which involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including
appropriate capitalisation rates, reversionary rental
value and market transactions of comparable
properties.
EEENKREMENRBE LS EREXEGEM([fHE
B ETHMEE - KRR TEERGE - MG
HERMTE R 16PTKRE  NEFE BXEEEKIREY
EZRNTER  MEMERSYEERNEEAAL
WHEE  ERSR(EFEE)EEENLLE 1B
MERALLBYE THRXS (RERBRAME) 2ET
(CEa
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Challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and appropriateness of valuation
models applied based on available market data
and our knowledge of the property industry and
whether the assumptions and methodologies
are consistent with those used in prior year;
RIBEMEMSEBEIREEHMETENRE -
kB EFERFHNSBMRAERGEERNE
BN UREERZRFERTEBEFERN
&R

Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation, on a sample basis, by
checking to the publicly available information
on comparable market transactions, comparing
rental income, terms of existing leases to the
existing lease summary of the Group and
evaluating whether capitalisation rates adopted
are comparable to market; and
FRBEAFAAIFONALRTERSER - &
HeWARBREHEKRRE EXERAHEE
MEELLR - LR EFAERABHNE RN EE
BEMSHEE - MR EEERERNEZH
BRAREEE &

Checking arithmetical accuracy of calculations.
mEEMTEREERER



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

B A RS ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include in the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether this Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) is responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2019 £,
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BN AZBENRE ()

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks; and, obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

B A RS ()

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

B A RS ()

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practising Certificate Number: P05895

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

=IAN
N

B NMAMEEWAEK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z 20194 12 A31 HIFF/E

2019 2018
20195 20184F
Notes S$'000 S$'000
ks F 37003 7T TN T
Revenue U &5 7 42,004 44,995
Fair value gain of investment properties X&YW E N FEWZE 16 5,149 2,050
Other income, gains and losses, net HAi U A -~ WS M EiEE 5 8 194 202
Cost of inventories consumed FrB T AR (16,469) (17,179)
Staff costs 8 ITA 10 (11,741) (11,617)
Property rentals and related expenses #1274 &iMEHE X (4,304) (6,226)
Management, cleaning and R BRRABAEEME
utilities expenses (1,761) (1,732)
Depreciation on property, plant and VI - BREREEITE
equipment 17 (381) (367)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FHESETE 18 (1,020) -
Listing expenses WX 10 (2,125) (2,265)
Other operating expenses Mgz (2,707) (2,363)
Finance costs BTG RN 9 (1,378) (1,228)
Profit before taxation BRF B R 10 5,461 4,370
Taxation IE 13 (303) (371)
Profit for the year FERERA 5,158 3,999
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Efth 2 EUE - R EIE - -
Profit and total comprehensive FERIRZEBALLE
income for the year 5,158 3,999
Earnings per share SREF
Basic and diluted (in Singapore cents) — ELZK K 58 (Eransg (L) 15 0.67 0.67

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

BEFHF FERB AR I B4R & M SRR VAR BE D
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Re MR

As at 31 December 2019 R20194 12 A31 H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes S$$°000 S$'000
B 5T F Frhn3g 7o FHE N T
Non-current assets REBEE
Investment properties KEME 16 104,300 83,650
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEKRE 17 6,747 2,118
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 1,619 -
Deposits paid BffHe 21 320 225
112,986 85,993
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 152 161
Trade and other receivables B 5 &EAMERIA 20 1,064 532
Prepayments and deposits paid FENREREAES 21 1,979 3,243
Other financial assets EmemEE 22 676 664
Pledged bank deposit BRI THFER 23 15 15
Cash and cash equivalents B RESZEY 23 11,688 4,911
15,574 9,526
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B SN RR 24 2,464 2,766
Accruals, other payables and deposits  EztE A - EfbERFIE R
received BEHEe 25 2,752 3,533
Borrowings R 26 3,535 6,458
Lease liabilities HERE 27 1,072 -
Tax payables FERTFRIE 222 674
10,045 13,431
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (ARB)BE 5,629 (3,905)
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERREBEE 118,515 82,088
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e PBIRE (E)

As at 31 December 2019 R20194 12 A31 H

2019 2018
2019 20184
Notes S$°000 S$'000
BT F Frhn3g 7o FHE T
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Borrowings EEN 26 52,616 44,934
Lease liabilities HERE 27 568 =
Deposits received BlRe 25 189 259
53,373 45,193
Net assets FEE 65,142 36,895
Capital and reserves EXRFEE
Share capital A% A 28 1,381 —*
Reserves s 29 63,761 36,895
Total equity R 65,142 36,895
* The balance represents an amount less than S$1,000. * EptEe 71,000 #7003t

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
KREBEE
Director

EF

I PR B R B UL

B M B mREER IS -

202093 A27 HEZ SR E MR ET)E
THUNTESRERRSE

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)

Bx=i&+t
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEm PR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z 20194 12 31 HIFF/E

Other
Share Share reserve Retained
Capital premium (Note) earnings Total
Hith ikt
B R1DEE (KHaE) REEF @t
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

THMKT  THMET  THMET  THIOET  THIRE

As at 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H =¥ - 2,790 33,544 36,334
Dividends e = - - (3,438) (3,438)
Profit and total comprehensive AEEGRMNREERSASE

income for the year - - - 3,999 3,999
As at 31 December 2018 and R2018F 12 A31H

1 January 2019 %2019 1 A1H —* - 2,790 34,105 36,895
Issue new shares pursuant to REERCBITRITHRG

the capitalisation issue 1,036 (1,036) - - -
Issue new share pursuant to BIBR D B ERTHRG

the share offer 345 25,637 - - 25,982
Transaction costs attributable to BT EER FHRA

issue of new shares - (2,893) - - (2,893)
Profit and total comprehensive AFEERA R 2ERGEESE

income for the year - - - 5,158 5,158
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H 1,381 21,708 2,790 39,263 65,142
* The balance represents an amount less than S$1,000. * EERESF 1,000 FT N T ©

Note: The other reserve of the Group represents the reserve arose pursuant to the Misk : REBEMBEEEREGAMBHRRMT2MEE
Reorganisation (defined in note 2) as set out in note 2 to the consolidated B (RMIEE2) EERREE -
financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  FrHIFI = A S 454 B S HRE 2 IS ©
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

n\/T\ E/% sz /Ib ?E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z 20194 12 A31 HIFF/E

2019 2018
2019 20184F
Notes S$'000 S$'000
B &E F g T TN T
Cash flows from operating activities R ZEFBHREERE
Profit before taxation B 758 A1 g ) 5,461 4,370
Adjustments for: MUTEEEHFE
Depreciation on property, plant ME  BERREITE
and equipment 17 381 367
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEERE 18 1,020
Finance costs U I RN 9 1,378 1,228
Bad debts written off RS 10 - 34
Exchange loss/(gain) [ 5 &8 (Was) 8 38 (67)
Income from other financial assets HEE&rEERA (12) (23)
Interest income FLEUA 8 (113) (77)
Fair value gain of investment BEME AT ERE
properties 16 (5,149) (2,050)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - MR M RED
plant and equipment, net (W), BEFE 8 (1) 43
Operating cash flows before LEEEHRLERSRE
movements in working capital 3,003 3,825
Increase in trade and other o fth pE U IR AN
receivables (532) (195)
Decrease in inventories FERL 9 15
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments BRFEMENEE
and deposits paid B, (3 hn) 293 (2,575)
Decrease in trade payables B R EIRm (302) (79)
Decrease in accruals, other payables — fEEtER - HiERTZRIE &
and deposits received 2R e R (851) (336)
Cash generated from KRBTSR E
operating activities 1,620 655
Income tax paid ERPTSE (755) (451)
Income tax refund FriSfiaR 5K - 118
Net cash generated from KL TSR T
operating activities 865 322
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

584

l\‘/T\

mER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z 20194 12 31 HIFF/E

2019 2018
2019 20184F
Notes S$'000 S$'000
B &E F 370038 7T T
Cash flows from investing activities REZEIFBESKE
Interest income received BUH B R 113 =
Purchase of property, plant BEME  HENMK&E
and equipment (2,005) (158)
Purchase of investment properties BEIREYE (6,178) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE BENEE
plant and equipment LN 3 _
Net cash used in investing activities WEEHTAIR S 5 (8,067) (158)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZEfESHEESRE
Repayment from a shareholder M — %4 % UL ERE X - 968
Repayment of bank borrowings, net  (E&R1TEZUEE (6,695) (1,408)
Finance costs paid BB (1,378) (1,228)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAR (999) -
Proceeds from issue of shares AR B SRR
by way of share offer BT 1S SRR 25,982 -
Transaction costs attributable to BT IR R B AR
issue of new shares (2,893) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBAE/ (A RLFHE
financing activities 14,017 (1,668)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BHERESEEY
and cash equivalents #hn,/ (R BEE 6,815 (1,504)
Effects of foreign exchange EXRESENTE
rate changes (38) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the FEVREMIAEEEY
beginning of the year 4,911 6,415
Cash and cash equivalents at FEERAESRESEEY
the end of year 11,688 4,911

Bt © HZE2019F K 2018F 12 A3 HILFEI ES RIT
AIREAEE - HZE2019F 12 A3 AL FETES
IR A HA AR B (2018 4F ¢ 493,438,000 %1 H4 7T Jh

Note: No final dividends declared during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018. No interim dividend was declared during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: approximately S$3,438,000 was settled with amount due from a

shareholder). LAFER — B R R FIEAEHE) -
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  Frffi i3t A% F4r & BIEHMER Z AKX D

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re IE R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

K2 F&B Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law as an
exempted company with limited liability on 13 March 2018.
Its parent company is Strong Oriental Limited which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The shares of the
Company have been listed on the Main Board (the “Main
Board"”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) on 6 March 2019. The registered office
is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The headquarters
and principal place of business in Singapore is located 51 Ubi
Avenue, #02-17/18 Paya Ubi Industrial Park, Singapore
408933.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the leasing, outlet and stall management. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars
(“S$"), which is the functional currency of the Company. All
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (“$$°000"),
except when otherwise indicated.

—REHR

K2 F&B Holdings Limited ([~ 2 & J) 7
20183 A 13EMRBARNEAERSEHS
At ARREBRAT - A AR
/& Strong Oriental Limited » %2 Al 5
BREZESEMAY - ARATRMER
20193 A6 R EEBHMaRIMER
NE((BRAT]) ER(TER]) £/ - 5
ft 9% = 5 fi2 7 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands © 713 483
KE B & i B 5251 Ubi Avenue,
#02-17/18 Paya Ubi Industrial Park,
Singapore 408933.

ARRR—HREZERLAE - HRBR
AEXEXBATIENEHEE  HHRE
LB - &AM BIRER T AR M T
(T#rmgsT]) 25 - SRR R EIEE
B - BREBIAIN AEREZES
AT ([ FHgzT ) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

l\‘/T\

& B mAM T (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 A31 HiFF/Z

2.

118

REORGANISATION

Pursuant to the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) as
fully explained in the paragraph headed “History,
Reorganisation and Group Structure” of the Company's
prospectus dated 21 February 2019 (the “Prospectus”), the
Company becomes the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 5 September 2018. The
companies now comprising the Group were under the control
of subsidiaries before and after the Reorganisation.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the basis by applying the principles of merger
accounting, as if the Reorganisation has been completed at
the beginning of the reporting period.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows include
the results and cash flows of the companies now comprising
the Group have been prepared as if the current group
structure upon completion of the Reorganisation had been in
existence throughout the reporting period or since their
respective date of incorporation, where there is a shorter
period. The consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 has been prepared to present
the assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising
the Group as if the current group structure upon completion
of the Reorganisation had been in existence as at those
dates, taking into account the respective dates of
incorporation.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been
eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A I ERERMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

New and amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first time in the current year:

Leases
Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

IFRS 16
IFRS 9 (Amendments)

IFRIC-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatment

IAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

IAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures
Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle

IFRSs (Amendments)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases
The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the current

year. IFRS 16 superseded IAS 17 Leases (“IAS 17"), and the
related interpretations.

FE PR =T B B Bt 35 o 5 22 Al ([ |
PER B 5 3 o5 22 B 1) e BB PR B B 3R

4B 5T A

BN 6 B2 38 5 A A9 F AT B BR B 7
WEZARERM KRS ZEEET
PN

REE  AEBEBRERAUTEESS
EAPES S ABMAMTBRT RS
R R B 15 S ERNERT AN

ARHMBREEAF 6% BE

BRABREENER ARAREMRMEN
(BETK) el

BRUBRERERES  MENRELIETH
—REEBR

B @5 ERIE 195 BEIZHRE B
(BFTE)

Bl @ sHERIFH 285k REENTRAERAN
(BFTE) gD

ARG HREENBITR  BERBEREEN 201552
2017 FBENFE

Br NPT E SN - RAFEER R E
PR B 755 i o B R K B R B 75 R 5 R RIME
AIATEHAKEER MBEFENE
BRAERMKRAR,SZEHEEHBERE
PR RS EATE

BIFRE HREERE1657HE

REBEERANFE B RER BRI %R
HERNE 165 - BRMEmELERE16
BERKBER G ERF17REE(H
BREERIE 175 ) KB -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B ERRM R (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 A31 HiFF/Z

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply IFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not applying this standard
to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed its
contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial

application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in IFRS 16 in

assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 16, the
Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition
for leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for
these leases in accordance with IFRS 16 from the date of
initial application and comparative information has not been

restated.

As a lessee

The Group has applied IFRS 16 and modified retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date of the initial

application on 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities adjusted by applying IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii)
transition. Any difference at the date of the initial application
is recognised in the opening retained earnings and

comparative information has not been restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
IFRS 16 in transition, the Group applied the following practical
expedients to leases previously classified as operating leases
under IAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant
to the respective lease contracts;

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ending within 12
months of the date of the initial application;

(i) excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of the initial application;

(i) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining term for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environments.
Specifically, a discount rate for certain leases of food
centres/food stalls was determined on a portfolio basis;

(iv) applied hindsight based on facts and circumstances as
at date of the initial application in determining the lease
term for the Group’s leases with extension and
termination options; and

(v) relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an alternative of
impairment review.

FE PR =T B B Bt 35 o 5 22 Al ([ |
PeR B 5 3 o5 22 B 1) e BB PR B B 3R

HEAMEET A (&)
B PR Bt 5 3R 5 2E AU S5 16 SRAE & ()
EREBENA (&)

38R B 2R R AR 1B 5T 8 WA e A B PR B
BREERF165RE TEBKERTED
AR AEERZFBEHEEEH AR
BEEERESFENE17TROBRKEENEE
BREZHESOEMNEERMAATH
THER.

() ZBEIMHEHEHRNEXERARH
1218 A R Hm e9 E E R AR A
BENHEERE:

(i) REXERBEHASEREEER
HRER 46 B IR

(i) HEUKLEBERRTBRLEHEEE
BRIMFSEMEENHERATE
RE—HRX - AT - A@H
BEETERBL/RIBHOITR R
HAEEETE

(iv) HEEAREGERLEEEEN
HER  EREREREMRAHE
ERBERNEREN - K&

v KEBREEMABERSEREIT7
SR AR EBERAAEEHH
ERDBREEMETIE B
HRESZS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
42 A

e M HmARNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

3.

122

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs"”) (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Financial impact of initial application of IFRS 16

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at
the date of the initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant group

entities range from 2.78% 10 4.29%.

FE PR 3 =T (B B Bt 35 g 5 22 A ([ |
PER B 5 3 o5 22 B 1) e BB PR B B 3

HEAMERT A (&)
BB HmEERE1657HE (F)

B FE A B PR B 7 R o 2 R 5 16 S AV Bt

E/
2

RERER D BEARKCEHEECHENH
EaER AEBEERAABEEETE
RERERBHAMNIZEERFE - 158
SEEREMERINETSIEEERFE
NI 2.78% £ 4.29% 2 f& »

S$’000
FH T
Operating lease commitment at 31 December 2018 MR2018F 12 A31 BN EHEHE 4,619
Less: Total future interest expenses B ARIRF) B R (95)
Present value of remaining lease payments, 55 A 38 2 18 TR R BL IR 09 RI6R
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate HESRZBEE 4,524
Less: Practical expedient — leases with lease term B AITTREE R — HEBREE R
ending within 12 months from the date of FEFHER12E A NER
initial application s (2,669)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019%F1 A1HZHEEE 1,855
Analysis as: DR -
Non-current liabilities FEREEE 983
Current liabilities MENEE 872
1,855
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs"”) (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Financial impact of initial application of IFRS 16
(Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at

FE PR =T B B Bt 35 o 5 22 Al ([ |
PeR B 5 3 o5 22 B 1) e BB PR B B 3R
HEAEIT A (&)

BB RS ERE 1657 HE ()

B BE A B PR B 7% R o 2 R 56 16 5 A9 Bt
=2 16 )

R2019F 1 A1 ERFRAEEEZR

1 January 2019 comprises the following: mESFEMT :
Right-of-use
assets
FREEE
S$°000
FF N3 T
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases FAFE B BR B A e &5 22 RIS 165712
recognised upon application of IFRS 16 RN EHEBBNEREEE 1,855
By class: BRI D
Food centres/Food stalls ERFPLRIE 1,855
pa
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REFEmRME(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Financial impact of initial application of IFRS 16
(Continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption
of IFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.

FE PR 3 =T (B B Bt 35 g 5 22 A ([ |
PER B 5 3 o5 22 B 1) e BB PR B B 3

HEAMERT A (&)
B PR Bt 5 3R 5 2R AU 5B 16 SR AE B ()

B FE A B PR B 7 R o 2 R 5 16 S AV Bt
=2 3¢ )

T FRBLAMER BRI A5 RS HE R 5B 1657
HAEEN2019F1 A1 BE A MR
MRZTE - AZEFHENEE K
1757 o

At At

31 December Recognition 1 January
2018 of leases 2019

R 20184 R2019F
12A31H HERR 1A1EH
S$'000 S$'000 $$'000

THIMETT TH KT T3 3K T

Line items in the consolidated statement 5745 4% [ (2% B 745 3 25 £ B

of financial position impacted by E 162
the adoption of IFRS 16: ARSI RIER ¢
Right-of-use assets FREEE
Total non-current assets EREBEELAE
Lease liabilities (current) HEaE(RE)
Total current liabilities REEEAHE
Net current liabilities REEEBE

Total assets less current liabilities BEERAEAERS

Lease liabilities (non-current) HEaFECGERD)
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEERE

- 1,855 1,855
85,993 1,855 87,848
- 872 872
13,431 872 14,303
(3,905) (872) (4,777)
82,088 983 83,071
- 983 983
45,193 983 46,176
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R TE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not yet applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material
(Amendments)

IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark

(Amendments) Reform’
IFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business?
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
(Amendments) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs, a
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was
issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
“Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in IFRS Standards” will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standard Boards (the “IASB"). In addition, The consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the listing of securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significant of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Merger accounting for common control
combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
business in which the common control combination occurs as
if they had been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Merger accounting for common control
combination (Continued)

The net assets of the combining entities or business are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised with respect to
goodwill or any excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over its cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the contribution of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or business from the earliest date
presented or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of common control
combination.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the combining entities or business are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated but considered
as an impairment indicator of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of combining entities or business have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, cost of furnishing information to shareholders, costs or
losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the common
control combination that is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies as
business combination, except for those acquisitions which
qualify as a common control combination and are therefore
accounted for using the merger accounting.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange and, all acquisition-related costs are
expensed. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policy adopted by
the Group.

Revenue and other income recognition

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract
are accounted for an presented on a net basis.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) Food and beverages income

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discount.

(b) Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EAREFTBERME (E)

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition (Continued) WKk HEMW AR (&)

(¢) Provision of management, cleaning and utilities (c) RHEEE. FERAPAEXER®
services
Revenue from the rendering of outlet management AP IRHEHEEEREEARSE
services and utilities services to the tenants are IR AU ES TR SE A FT IR (AR 7%
recognised upon the completion of the services RFRER o
rendered.
Revenue from provision of cleaning services is RS RSN IR IRE W%
recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the IR IR IR TS 5 LA B 458 B ERE
service agreements upon rendering of services o

(d) Interest income (d) FEWA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the FEUWA TR E £ RHIRE R A &%
effective interest method. TR o
For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are MILBEKN AT ERAVEGFEEE
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied RENESREEMS - EERAEAEZ
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit- BERAZEEREMNE - RHHREERE
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is ZERMEEMS  BEBHEKA
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount (BNEREARENREREE) AT
net of loss allowance) of the asset. BRFR o
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance

with transitions in note 3)

Definition of a lease

Lease is a contract contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand- alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-

lease components as a single lease component.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 3) (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of food centres that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 3) (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9") and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 3) (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

° fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the

lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4,

POLICIES (Continued)

Lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 3) (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The lease liabilities are presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 3) (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of lease

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the commencement date at
amounts equal to the Group’s net investment in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred by
manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the initial
measurement of the net investments in the leases. Interest
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Lessor (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance

with transitions in note 3) (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of lease (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value model.
Upon application of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments to
be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a

rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as

revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component. Non-
lease components are separated from lease component on

the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease

payments from lessees.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 3)
(Continued)

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Leases (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (prior to 1 January 2019) (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs with more than an insignificant
amount are capitalised when incurred, and are recognised in
profit or loss on the same basis as rental income over the
lease term. Other initial direct costs with an insignificant
amount are charged to profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred. Contingent rents are charged to profit or
loss in the period in which they are actually arise.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the consolidated
entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the
accounting policies below); and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. S$) using exchange rate prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant
relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal
amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the
asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts and
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a
pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset
by equal annual instalments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund
("CPF") scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension
scheme. These contributions are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they become payable in accordance
with the scheme.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

(a) Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “Profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and their respective tax bases used
in computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is the end of no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group
first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the lease
terms due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the reporting period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Goods and services tax (“GST")

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of
the amount of GST except where the GST incurred on a
purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item as applicable.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of
GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority is included as part of other
receivables or payables in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
process are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in
profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.
The property, plant and equipments are depreciated over

their estimated useful lives or amortised over the lease period
on a straight-line basis as follow:

Freehold building 50 years
Furniture and fittings 3 years
Food establishment and office equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles 3to b years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reassessed at each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on a
weighted average method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less the estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in which the reversal occurs.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as
other revenue and other income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of IFRS 9
or initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income
("OCI") if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations

applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and effective interest method

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before

adjusting for any loss allowance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest method
(Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For
financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in
subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the ‘Other income, gains and losses, net’
line item (note 8).

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent
they are not part of a designated hedging relationship.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “Other income, gains and losses,
net” line item.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9
(including trade and other receivables, deposits paid, pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial

instrument.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting period as well as

the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually and/or collectively using a provision matrix with

appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. Forward looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as
well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to

the Group's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the

debtor;
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant determination in
the operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

1. it has a low risk of default (i.e. no default history);

2. the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

3. adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when it has internal or external credit rating of
investment grade in accordance with the globally
understood definition.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that financial
assets that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collateral held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

4.

EXRESTHRME (8)

$RTE(E

TREE (#)

& el e (AR)

(ii)

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2019 £,

AEERRATEAR AT EER
REEBNMEBRENSH
RBERRRAN AU TNEMN—IA
fif 1 B0 FE M AR K — AR B MR B

s XHUTFERMBHE =K

o AMELLERBIIEBIR
MERMKE  BHATKH
EREERA(BRASE)
2EER(NEEAKERE
MEMERR)

N LI DA - AEBBA
EeRMEERMBBIORKREL
EBH EAREERERAREER
HERARRRNEOENE REE
A= ERE

161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

l\‘/T\

B BHRRWE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 A31 HiFF/Z

4.

162

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event (see (i) above);

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in

profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade receivables are assessed as a separate
group. Other receivables and deposits paid are
assessed for expected credit losses on an
individual basis);

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification of financial liabilities or equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money

is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the

receivable can be measured reliably.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4,

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries is related to the
others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group which the other entity is a
member);

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

(viii)  The entity or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or the Group's parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealing with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price
is charged.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

Ej{%ﬁﬁk mg<nﬂ)

BBLX% (&)
(b)  fHFFE A EM A - BN EEA

SEAEY : (8

(vi) ZEREX () PrEtAl e A T4E
e R

(vii) B (@) FTa B A T H E e
EEAYENNBZERS (K
ZEBOEQAR)ZEEEE
B =k

(vii) ZE

ERATH IR RERERIZEER
B LA EZENALTHORBAAHRR
ZEARIA L ENHE -

E-IARZWRAKE LY 2 H
BRERIBEE(TwaEBWEGE) -
ARG QBT S -

AFEE

ARFEATS2EERFTEEHESF
RHEFHEEEMBMMNERIE RS
B ARNERE - AFEEFENRER
BREEEENIEREENTINEEL
BEFEMBREREETEMBER
T REBNZEEXBENTSET
MiEH - T2 HFENMISERETEH
AEANTSG c BEXEBENATFETD
Emi520aE (REEgURECENR
TE)REESBEEERMANRES

E"

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2019 £ 2§ 169



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

l\‘/T\

B BHRRWE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 A31 HiFF/Z

4.

170

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the Financial Information are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

o Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

o Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

° Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial
Information on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group's executive directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of the Group's various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, which are not restricted as to use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 A31 HiFF/Z

4.

172

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Dividends

Dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained earnings within the equity
section of the consolidated statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been approved
by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s accounting policies require
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

In the applications of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (which are presented separately below),
that the directors have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trade and other receivables and deposits
paid

Upon adoption of IFRS 9, the management estimates the
amount of loss allowance for ECL on trade and other
receivables and deposits paid that are measured at amortised
cost based on the credit risk of the respective financial
instruments and counterparty. The loss allowance amount is
measured as the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit loss of the trade and other
receivables and deposits paid. The assessment of the credit
risk of the trade and other receivables and deposits paid
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty. When the
actual future cash flows are less than expected or more than
expected, a material impairment loss or a material reversal of
impairment loss may arise, accordingly.
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5.

174

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

The Group reviews its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets for indications of impairment at each
reporting period. In analysing potential impairments identified,
the Group uses projections of future cash flows from the
assets based on management’s assignment of a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Income tax expense

The Group has exposure to income taxes in Singapore. In
determining the income tax liabilities, management is
required to estimate the amount of capital allowances,
deductibility of certain expenses and applicable tax incentives.
There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax recognised in the period in which such
determination is made. The carrying amounts of the Group's
current income tax liabilities as at 31 December 2019 were
approximately S$222,000 (2018: approximately S$674,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Depreciation

Iltems of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual value. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
based on the Group's historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expenses for future period are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Fair value measurements and valuation process

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
valuation committee works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model.

Further information on the carrying amounts of these assets
and the valuation techniques and inputs are provided in note
16.
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6.

176

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management’s purpose, the Group is organised into two
operating business segments, namely:

(a)

(b)

Outlet management

The business segment of outlet management operation
involves in the leasing of food establishment premises
to tenants and the provision of management, cleaning
and utilities services to tenants (the “Outlet
Management”).

Food and beverage stalls

The business segment of food and beverage stalls
operation primarily involves in the retailing of beverage,
tobacco products, and cooked food directly to
consumers such as mixed vegetable rice, zi char,
roasted meat and chicken rice located in food
establishments operated and managed by the Group
and third parties (the “Food and Beverage Stalls”).

Management monitors the operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
which in certain respects is measured differently from
operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A I ERERMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

6.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. REHIER(HE)
(Continued)
Year ended 2019 BE2019FILFE
Food and
Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls  Unallocated Total
EHEE BEHER AAE @t
$$'000 $$'000 $$°000 $$'000
T T FHME T T MK T FH MK

Revenue s
Revenue from contracts with customers: &P A #)4iz ¢

Recognised at a point in time RE—IR%mR - 34,068 - 34,068

Recognised over time R—ERERAER 2,398 - - 2,398

2,398 34,068 - 36,466

Revenue from other sources: H R
Rent income AEA 23,651 - - 23,651
Adjustment and elimination TR (18,113) - - (18,113)
Total revenue Fylge 7,936 34,068 - 42,004
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/(F8) 7,696 2,405 (4,640) 5,461
Other segment information: HitrpHEs
Fair value gain of investment properties R EMEN L FEMNE 5,149 - - 5,149
Exchange loss B % e - - (38) (38)
Finance costs SN (1,315) - (63) (1,378)
Addition to non-current assets (Note) ERBEERE (H3E) 16,014 2,570 1,929 20,513
Addition to right-of-use assets FRESERE - 784 - 784
Depreciation on property, nE  BERIETE

plant and equipment (101) (204) (76) (381)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FRREENE (667) (353) - (1,020)
Staff costs RN (9,555) - (2,186) (11,741)
Property rentals and related expenses  ¥¥M4 LAEES (2,926) (1,378) - (4,304)
Interest income MakA - - 113 113
Assets and liabilities: BERAE:
Segment assets DHBE 110,303 5,845 12,412 128,560
Segment liabilities HHEE 58,348 3718 1,352 63,418

Y
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6.

178

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

IR

6. KEIWEHR (&)

(Continued)
Year ended 2018 BZ2018F 1L E
Food and
Outlet Beverage
Management Stalls Unallocated Total
REER BHHEN AOE @ar
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHME T FHms T FHMET FHmET
Revenue e
Revenue from contracts with customers: &P A& 41U ¢
Recognised at a point in time RE—EE%®ER - 36,862 = 36,862
Recognised over time R—ERERAER 2,460 - - 2,460
2,460 36,862 - 39,322
Revenue from other sources: Efh B
Rent income AEWA 18,251 - - 18,251
Adjustment and elimination ARLEHE (12,578) - - (12,578)
Total revenue EYlE 8,133 36,862 - 44,995
Segment profit/(loss) AEF/(FR) 4,741 2,500 (2,871) 4,370
Other segment information: HibpER
Bad debts written off AR (34) - - (34)
Fair value gain of investment properties R EWMERN A FENE 2,050 - - 2,050
Exchange gain B 7 s - - 67 67
Finance costs BESRR AR (925) - (303) (1,228)
Addition to non-current assets (Note) ERBEERNE (M) 103 - 55 158
Depreciation on property, nE - BREIEENE
plant and equipment (57) (205) (105) (367)
Staff costs ERN%N (9,404) - (2,113) (11,517)
Property rentals and related expenses ~ ¥1%4 RiEEER % (5,443) (783) - (6,226)
Interest income MBMA - - 77 77
Assets and liabilities: EEREE:
Segment assets DEEE 87,800 2,406 5,313 95,519
Segment liabilities NHBE 43,494 3,254 11,876 58,624
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6.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. R&H

(Continued)

Note: Non-current assets included investment properties and property, plant fisE -
and equipment.

HER (&)

Information about major customers EBETEEENER
No single major customer contributed more than 5% of the e —

Group's total revenue. The revenue is spread over a broad 5%
base of customers.

FRBDEERERENEARDE  BER

IEEFPHASERKRAES
o WA MR BEZEPE

Geographical information b I8 35 )
The Group operates mainly in Singapore with revenue AEBTERFHINELE - WXFBER
generated in Singapore. Accordingly, an analysis of revenue SN o E i ﬁ%ﬁfﬁlﬁkiﬁlﬁ 546 B
and assets of the Group by geographical distribution has not REBUWEREEDN o
been presented.
REVENUE 7. WFH
2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
S$$°000 S$'000
F #7038 T TN T
Revenue from contract with customers ~ EF A LU
Revenue recognised at point in time NE R 2 W
— Sales of cooked food, beverage —HEAR MM EEER
and tobacco products 34,068 36,862
Revenue recognised over time R—BREH R 2 W=
— Provision of management, cleaning —IREERE  BER
and utilities services UNGEES0 2,398 2,460
36,466 39,322
Revenue from other sources H 4t 2R UL 2
Rental income from leases of premises  [A#EF HAZHEHES WA
to tenants 5,638 5,673
42,004 44,995

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2019 43§ 179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Z-—b

% AY

B BHRRWE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 8. HMWA - - WRREIEFEE
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
S$'000 S$'000
F S b0 7T FE N T
Government grants: SRR
— Productivity and Innovation Credit — EENRAFESR - 5
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEYE  BEREREBZ
plant and equipment, net Wz (B18) 35 1 (43)
Exchange (loss)/gain P& 5, (E518) Uezs (38) 67
Interest income FE U A 113 77
Sundry income HIEU A 118 96
194 202
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BFmA
2019 2018
2019 20184
S$'000 S$'000
F 5 hn3g 7T FHE T
Interest on: A& BT A -
Borrowings B 1,321 1,228
Lease liabilities HEBE 57 -
1,378 1,228
M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE I ERRMIEE (8
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BR%E A& A

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging: MRELEDR AR A N S IEBER :

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
S$'000 S$'000
F g T TR
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(BIEESEHS)
emoluments)
Salaries and other employee benefits e RAMEBET 11,066 10,853
Contributions to defined contribution FRHRFGRIRETE AR
retirement plan 675 664
11,741 11,517
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B 37 A
— audit services — ZER
— annual audit services — FEZERE 132 124
— listing services (included in — EWRBGIALTHAR)
listing expenses) 781 -
Listing expenses WX 2,125 2,265
Expenses relating to short term lease IR ERANMX 4,257 -
Operating lease renting expenses EEHERSRX - 6,198
Bad debts written off AR - 34
Subcontracting labour D e - 175
Y - A
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11.

182

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company

during the reporting period are as follows:

11. EEME

ARABZEEETRNHEHANFMFED

N

For the ended 31 December 2019
HZ2019812A3NALEE

Contributions
to defined
Salaries  contribution Other
Directors’ and retirement short-term
fees bonuses plan benefits Total
ERMHFEK
ESHe HERTA EMHR HtEHER EoHY
$$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$000 $$'000
FHmEx  FAMET O FEMET O FEMET FAMER
Executive directors: HITESE:
Mr. Chu Chee Keong REBAE(TREED
(Zhu Zhigiang) (“Mr. Chu") (Mt )
(Note (a)) 40 696 19 - 755
Ms. Leow Poh Hoon Brzut((Bxt))
(Liao Baoyun) (“Ms. Leow") (P (b))
(Note (b)) - 200 19 - 219
Non-executive director: *HTES
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi) Kisar(T&zt))
("Ms. Chu") (Note (c)) (3 () 21 4 1 3 29
Independent non-executive  BIUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Wong Loke Tan Wong Loke Tan %t
(“Mr. Wong") (Note () ([Wong %4 1)
(O () 21 - - 3 2
Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek EEFEE(EEE]
("Mr. Loh") (Note (e)) (MizE(e)) 21 - - 3 2%
Mr. Mah Seong Kung DENEE(BEED
("Mr. Mah") (Note (f) (Fi33E () 25 - - 3 28
128 900 39 12 1,079
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11.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

. EEM = (&)

For the ended 31 December 2018

BZE018F12A31BILFE
Contributions
to defined
Salaries  contribution Other
Directors’ and retirement short-term
fees bonuses plan benefits Total
EBHFRI
EEe BERTA FESMR  EtREERN FEE
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHmET  FEET  FEET FEET FEIET

Executive directors: HITES:

Mr. Chu (Note (a)) KEAE () 480 77 13 = 570

Ms. Leow (Note (b)) Bzt (FizEb) = 115 19 S 134

Non-executive director: FHTES:

Ms. Chu (Note (c) Frt (M () = 16 3 S 19

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES:

directors:

Mr. Wong (Note (d)) Wong 5t 4 (izE (d)) - - - - -

Mr. Loh (Note (e)) B (15 (e) - - - - -

Mr. Mah (Note (f)) DA () - - - - -

480 208 3b - 723

Notes: BiaE -

(a) Mr. Chu has been redesignated as an executive director dated on 13 (@) KEER2018F3 A I3 AERATANTES
March 2018 and appointed as the Chairman of the board and chief Wi2018F 313 AEZTAREESERK
executive officer of the Company on 13 March 2018. ARARKITHRABE -

(b) Ms. Leow has been appointed as an executive director of the dated on (b) BL+R2018F313R XA AHITES -
13 March 2018.

(c) Ms. Chu has been appointed as a non-executive director of the board (c) RIZER2018468 A30HEZTAEELIE
dated on 30 August 2018. BiTES -

(d) Mr. Wong has been appointed as an independent non-executive director (d) Wong e £ R 2019F2 A 1THEZ T AES
of the board dated on 1 February 2019. SRV IERITES -

(e) Mr. Loh has been appointed as an independent non-executive director (e) EXER2019F 2 1HEZEAESSHE

of the board dated on 1 February 2019.

Mr. Mah has been appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the board dated on 1 February 2019.
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) . EEME (E)
The Company's executive directors’ emoluments shown FIRZARBIRITESNNEEEIESR
were mainly for their service in connection with the HEEEBAAAIRASEE 2 EBEHEHN
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. BR7S 2 B 45 o
The Company’s independent non-executive Directors’ FIRZARR B IERITEETNNE =
emoluments shown was mainly for their services as directors ELHEERRRAEZTNRE ZEE -
of the Company.
The remuneration shown above represents remuneration EXFITAMEIEZEEEUSREAR
received and receivable from the Group by these directors in SEREFOHR KUARRREESH
their capacity as employees to the Group and/or in their D RIR AL EE =20184F & 20194 12
capacity as directors of the Company during the years ended A3MBIEFERRREBRNE - RF
31 December 2018 and 2019 respectively. None of the N BESEERERPIB2EAMNR
directors agreed to waive or waived any emoluments during (2018F : &) e FIRMARBIHITES
the year (2018: Nil). The Company's executive directors’ MeETZEREEEEARANRILASE
emoluments shown were mainly for their service in ZETSEREIRTS 2 &S o
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

12. EMPLOYEE'S EMOLUMENTS 12. EEEHM

184

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid employees during the years ended

(a) EEBSHMAL

HE2019F K% 2018512 A31 B 1k

31 December 2019 and 2018 included 2 and 2 directors, FE - AEARaFEESRIEE
respectively and details of whose emoluments are set 2B R2BEFE BHENMNESFIE

out in note 11 above. Details of the emoluments of the
remaining 3 (2018: 3) highest paid employees who are
not a director during the year are as follows:

FHPEXHFE1 - RAFE - 8T
3% (20185 : 3R R FHIESR
(AFER) MM SFBNT

2019 2018

20194 20184

S$'000 S$'000

F S b0 7T FE I T

Salaries and bonuses e LIEAT 486 501
Contributions to defined contribution  EXEMFGRIKET2IA)H R

retirement plan 42 53

528 554
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B BHmRNE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

12. EMPLOYEE’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as
follows:

TEREFHAL (R

B THENIFEF &S5 MM
BEAZIT :

2019 2018
2019 & 2018 4F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to % 1,000,000 ¢ (FAER
Nil to S$180,505) i180,505 ¥ T) 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 % 7T & 2,000,00078 7T
(equivalent to S$180,506 to (HBS 7 180,506 F AN T
$$361,010) 361,010 0% T) 1 1
3 3

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the five highest paid individuals have
waived any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2019.

HZE2018F 201912 A31 81t
FE - AEBEBER AL &S5
AT - tEAINAREE K
AR S B %K REN KA A BERR
Ed - HZE2018F X 2019412 A
NBIUFE  ZREERSFHAL
EmET A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

13. TAXATION 13. BB

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands BERENENEBELEENHRAR
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any R AEBHEARNHEHENEEBER
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin TEE BRI FTEF -

Islands.

The Singapore Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") rate was 17% RARFEE - N EMRETH ([ EAR
(2018: 17%) during the year. Income tax expense for the B NDEE17% (20184F 1 17%) o A&
Group relates wholly to the profits of the subsidiaries, which WA EHAS TR ENE AR 8%EF
were taxed at 17% in Singapore. Major components of B ZEWEB AR INKIZ17% 8
income tax expense for the years ended 2018 and 2019 are: HEHH - BE2018F K2019F |FF

BB HRA T EAMIO R

2019 2018
2019 & 20184
S$'000 S$'000

FHMET  THIET

Current tax ENERFR 18
Singapore CIT FINE (PTG TR 202 489
Under/(over) provision in respect of BEFEERETR(BRERE)

prior years 101 (118)

303 371
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e MR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

13. TAXATION (Continued)

13.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for country in which the Company’s
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective

tax rates is as follows:

mIE (IIE)

BARBINE R R FEBZOAE &R B
KREHADE R E R AR S BIRE
BRI R E T IAR S MR T

2019 2018

2019 20184

S$'000 S$'000

F 37003 7T FE N T

Profit before taxation R 7 AR 5,461 4,370
Income tax using the statutory tax rate RATEMERAENTER 928 743
Non-deductible expenses IR R 390 448
Non-taxable incomes EEREHTWA (875) (349)
Unrecognised temporary difference RIERE R =5 - 40
Effect of tax exemption and tax relief HMERE LHRIER PN E (241) (394)
Unutilised tax losses RENBIHIBEEGE - 1

Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEEBRERETR

Gkt o)) 101 (118)

303 371

y
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 A31 HiFF/Z

14.

15.

188

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company does not recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the years ended 2018 and
2019. No interim dividend was declared during the year (2018
interim dividend: approximately S$3,438,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year of approximately S$5,158,000 (2018:

14.

15.

9=

ARBIEESW T ERRNTEE20184F
F2019F I FE 2 EMKRIRKRE « BRA
FEBETIRP IR S (2018FF HK
B 1 #93,438,000 F N T) °

BRE2F

EREABANDERAFEEID
5,158,000 %1 0 m(2018¢ Ay

approximately $$3,999,000) and the weighted average 3,999,000 #T HN3ETT) 5T & - RARAFTR
number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue during REEDHTE ﬁﬂxzmﬁéiiﬁﬂxﬁyﬁr
the year calculated as follows: HERNOT
2019 2018
2019 20184
Weighted average number of ordinary TEtESREAREFNZ
shares for the purpose of calculating EEAR IR T 8
basic earnings per share 764,931,507 600,000,000

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share have been adjusted for the effect of the
completion of the initial public offering relating to the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board (the “Share
Offer”) on 6 March 2019.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share for the year has been
adjusted for 600,000,000 shares issued pursuant to the
capitalisation issue which took place upon the completion of
the Share Offer of the Company’s shares, which were
assumed to occur at 1 January 2018.

No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there was no
potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REW*

Total
et
S$’000
FFhn3gE T
Fair value ~FE
As at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1A 1H 81,600
Net gain arising from change in fair value of KEMEANFLEEHELNFWE
investment properties 2,050
As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 MR2018F 12 A31 B 20191 A1 H 83,650
Additions NE 15,501
Net gain arising from change in fair value of BN EREE AN TR
investment properties 5,149
As at 31 December 2019 A2019F12A31H 104,300

Acquisition of investment properties, which located at Block
101 YiShun Avenue 5#01-93, Singapore 760101 at a
consideration approximately S$15,501,000. The acquisition
cost was settled by deposit paid approximately S$750,000.
The remaining balance was settled by borrowings
approximately S$8,573,000.

The investment properties of the Group consist of 9 (2018: 8)
food courts are held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 which located
at Singapore. The investment properties are stated at fair
value. Fair value is estimate by the management of the
Company by comparable sales method reference to valuation
report provide by an independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle
Property Consultants Pte. Ltd., who holds a recognised and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the location and category of the investment property being
valued. The fair value disclosed is categorised as Level 2
valuation. The highest and best use of the investment
properties of the Group do not differ from its current use. The
Group’s investment properties’ fair value is determined by
comparable sales method, base on selling price of similar
properties at nearby location. As the fair value of investment
properties was derived using valuation technique and input
which was quoted prices for similar assets in active markets
and no unobservable input that will results in a significantly
higher or lower of the fair value measured, the directors of
the Company classified the fair value of investment properties
as level 2 fair value hierarchy.

W BRI Block 101 YiShun Avenue 5#01-
93, Singapore 760101 ) E W £ KR (E
494 15,501,000 %7 AN 3% 7T © U BE AKX AN
B 4 #9750,000 N ST AE E - £4
T AR E 0 498,573,0008 T I T 45 E o

20196 K% 2018512 A31H * A& H
BERDES R REANFAERENE
EYEBIEIMER018F  8f@) ERE
% BELLRFINE - REMETIUAR
AV A FETARNAGIERE S
AL E A e - WK ZERBE UG
{& FBhJones Lang LaSalle Property
Consultants Pte. Ltd. I2 it B9 {HE R & -
ZELAEMEAESRAEBERE
B WL ERE W) ¥ P e 3 B S P
ERRIEAOCRER FIRENATE
DER/RFE _RME XEEREMED
Emk&xEREEARKERARER - K
SENREMEATERTLHEEELE
E AR EBLUDENEE - B
RIEEWERNTETIER G ERM R
ABE(BERT SR ELUEENRE)
T MEEAAHEREABBERA
FEFERBEMSKRED - RAFIES
BREMEATFTEDERATEBRSE
“# o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

16.

190

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, the
highest and best use of investment properties is their current
use.

There was no change to the valuation technique during the
year.

}xﬁ%%(nﬂ)

R IRE M E R FER - ?&ﬁ%%
BAERgREREMEERS

RAEE - (HERITTE -

Level 2 fair value
measurement
E_BRATFETE
2019 2018
2019 % 20184F
S$'000 S$'000
F 7 T FET N T

Food courts located in Singapore MR ERES

104,300 83,650

During the year, there were no transfer into or out of level 2
or any other level.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfer between levels of
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The investment properties of the Group with a carrying
amount of S$104,300,000 (2018: S$83,650,000) have been
pledged to secure borrowings of the Group (see note 26).
The Group is not allowed to pledge these assets as security
for other borrowings or to sell them to another entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BERRE

Food
establishment
Freehold Freehold Furniture and office Motor
land building and fittings equipment vehicles Total
XA XA & RERBA
L £ ] ES 4k REE R HE @t
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHmET FHmET FHmET FHMET FHMET FHmET
Cost B
As at 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 1,510 220 322 3,268 255 5,575
Additions RE = S S 158 - 158
Disposal HE S - - (106) S (106)
As at 31 December 2018and R 201812 A31 B R
1 January 2019 2019%F1A1H 1510 220 322 3,320 255 5,627
Additions NG - 4,500 2 510 - 5,012
Disposal & - - - (93) - (93)
As at 31 December 2019 H2019%12A31H 1,510 4,720 324 3,737 255 10,546
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZFHIE
As at 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H - 14 317 2,631 242 3,204
Provide for the year FREE - 9 5 340 13 367
Disposal HE - - - (62) - (62)
As at 31 December 2018and 201812 A31 B R
1 January 2019 2019F1A18 - 23 322 2,909 255 3,509
Provided for the year FREE - 57 - 324 - 381
Disposal HE - - - (91) - (91)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F128318 - 80 322 3,142 255 3,799
Net carrying amount FEFE
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A318 1,510 4,640 2 595 - 6,747
Asat31December 2018 R2018%12A31 A 1,510 197 - m - 2118
Notes: k=3
(a) Purchases of property, plant and equipment at a consideration (a) BEWE - BERREHREL 5,012,000
approximately S$5,012,000. The acquisition cost was settled by deposit T o YR A AR 8 B 8 € 49 125,000
paid approximately S$125,000. The remaining balance was settled by FMETHEE - BT HEBBHBITERD
bank borrowing approximately $$2,882,000. 2,882,000 ¥ L&A E -
(b) As at 31 December 2019, property, plant and equipment with net (b) MR2019F 12 A31 80 - W% - BE KR HER

carrying amount of approximately S$6,150,000 (2018: approximately
S$1,707,000) was secured under mortgage loan as below mentioned in
note 26.

[ /% {8 476,150,000 #7 10 3 7T (2018 4F = 47
1,707,000 37 3% o) B FA1E T P 5 26 Frit
B E MR -

y
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18.

192

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 18. FRAEEE
Food centres/
Food stalls
ERFPNS
RiE
S$'000
FE N T
Cost J5%iN
As at 1 January 2019 (note 3) #2019F 1 818 (E3) 1,855
Additions NE 784
As at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 2,639
Accumulated depreciation i
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F1H1H =
Charge for the year FARLH 1,020
As at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 1,020
Carrying amounts REE
As at 31 December 2019 MR2019F12 A31H 1,619

The lease terms of the food centres/food stalls range from 1
to 3 years. Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
items of right-of-use assets over their expected useful lives
using straight line method. When there is no reasonable
certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the
lease term, the assets are depreciated over the lease term.

The Group does not have the option to purchase the right-of-
use assets for a nominal amount at the end of the lease
terms.

Lease liabilities of approximately S$1,640,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of approximately S$1,619,000
as at 31 December 2019. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Lease assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

19. INVENTORIES 19. BE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
S$'000 S$'000
F# s T TFHET T
Raw materials and consumables R R B 152 161

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EZREMEWRIE
2019 2018
20194 20184
S$'000 S$'000
F# s T F T
Trade receivables (Note) g 5 el roE (FisE) 529 107
Other receivables H b B W FRIE 535 425
1,064 532

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, trade receivables had been
written off amounted to approximately S$34,000.

Based on invoices date and net of impairment, ageing
analysis of the Group's trade receivables at the end of year

BisE - BZE2018F 12 A BIEFE - BH RN
THE 85 49 34,000 T N3 T ©

ANBZHERNBRE NEERE
F2019%F N 2018F 12 A31BIEFER

ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows: ME S RENFIERE DT
2019 2018
2019 20184
S$'000 S$'000
F Fr hn3g 7o TFHET I T
0 to 30 days 0E 30K 515 91
31 to 90 days 31E90K 10 14
91 to 180 days 91E180K 4 2
529 107

The Group allows an average credit period at 7 days to its

customers.

AEBRTEFPHNTHEERRTR

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2019 FF 2



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 A
R

MR ERR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 A31 HiFF/Z

20.

194

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL model. Trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the historical observed default rates adjusted by forward
looking estimates.

The Group applies simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. Based on historical experience, majority of trade
receivables were settled within credit term and the Group
received certain deposits from these customers, hence the
expected loss rate of current trade receivables is assessed to
be immaterial, no loss allowance on trade receivable was
recognised during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

A default on receivables are when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall
due. Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing
to engage in a repayment plan with the Group and the
amount due is significantly larger than the deposit received
by the Group. The Group categories a receivable for write off
when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater
than 180 days and the receivables is larger than the deposit
received by the Group. Where receivables have been written
off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. When recoveries are
made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

21. PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS PAID . ANFEERENHES
2019 2018
20195 20184
S$$000 S$'000
F 3N T TN T
Prepaid listing expenses T EmRX - 838
Prepayments TEfT IR 462 -
Deposits paid [RAREA 1,517 2,405
1,979 3,243
Add: Deposits paid (non-current portion) i : 244 (FEETHAEES ) 320 225
2,299 3,468
Note: As at 31 December 2019, deposits paid mainly represented the amount MizE: R2019%F 128318 EfNHE&FTEEH
of rental deposit at approximately S$1,225,000 (2018: approximately S S 491,225,000 E M0 7T (20184 = 49
S$609,000). 609,000 71N T) °
As at 31 December 2018, deposits paid mainly represented the amount M2018F 12 A31 8 ENFHELETERYEE
of acquisition of properties located at 30 Semei Street 3 and 101 Yishun 7230 Semei Street 3 5% 101 Yishun B9 %
at S$385,000 and S$750,000 respectively. After the acquisition, the 4% - 9 7l/A 385,000 H AN T & 750,000
properties will be operated and managed as food centres. N IT o W BREWESBIEAEZRY
DEE NER
22. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 22. HivemEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
S$$000 S$'000
F N T T2 T
Key management personnel life FEEBABASRE
insurance policies 676 664

On 24 July 2017, a subsidiary of the Company has entered
into a life insurance policies (the “Policies”) to insure the
directors of the Company Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow. Under the
policies, the beneficiary and policy holder is a subsidiary of
the Company and the insured USD1,000,000 to each of the
director. The Group is required to pay an upfront deposit of
USD562,000. The Group can terminate the Policies at any
time and receive cash back based on the cash value of the
Policies at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
upfront payments plus accumulated interest earned and
minus the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense
charge. The Group receives an interest at interest rates
guaranteed by the insurer.
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REFEmRME(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

22. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Income arising from Policies is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The entire amount of the rights under life insurance policies
is denominated in United States Dollar.

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED 23.

22. HibemEE (&)

REELENRARGABa REMERH
Yeas REER ©

ASRENABEREMNESRHUETE -

RERAEEEY CERR?T

BANK DEPOSIT X

2019 2018

20194 20184

S$$'000 S$'000

F Frhns3g 7o TR T

Cash and bank balances Be MIRITES 11,703 4,926
Less: Pledged bank deposit B BEIRIRITER (15) (15)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEEY 11,688 4,911

Cash and cash equivalent denominated in foreign currency is

ReRReSEMHRINEHERT

as follow:
2019 2018
2019 20184
S$$'000 S$'000
F# T TN T
Singapore Dollar i oT 5,937 4,911
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") B ([#xl) 5,751 -
11,688 4,911

Bank deposits carry out fixed interest rates 0.8% per annum
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 respectively, representing
deposits pledged to banks for securing the bank facilities
issued by the bank to the Group and unutilised banking
facilities amounting to approximately S$4,500,000 (2018:
approximately S$4,500,000) as at 31 December 2019.

N
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

T (48

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED

24.

23. RERRSEEY CEFERT

BANK DEPOSIT (Continued) FR(E)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing RETHELENEEEHER
activities:
Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
& HEAR B
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
T T TR TT T TT
As at 1 January 2018 720181 A1H 52,800 - 52,800
Financing cash inflows BERESRA 1,000 s 1,000
Financing cash outflows MEBRS R (2,408) - (2,408)
Finance costs paid EAEE KA (1,228) = (1,228)
Finance costs BhE AR 1,228 - 1,228
As at 31 December 2018 720184612 A31 8 51,392 - 51,392
Impact on initial application IHEFE R BRI s
of IFRS 16 HERE 1652 & - 1,855 1,855
As at 1 January (restated) m1 A1 (EEY) 51,392 1,855 53,247
Addition of mortgage HARIE 1 11,454 - 11,454
Financing cash outflows BER SN (6,695) (999) (7,694)
Addition of lease liabilities HEAEEN - 784 784
Finance costs paid EATEE KA (1,321) (57) (1,378)
Finance costs AR 1,321 57 1,378
As at 31 December 2019 72019612 H31H 56,151 1,640 57,791
TRADE PAYABLES 24. EFENRE
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
S$'000 S$'000
F 03 T T TT
Trade payables B SRR 2,464 2,766
Trade payables are non-interest bearing. Trade payables are BIRENRBATE - BHEMNFKIE
generally settled within 15 days to 90 days credit terms. BERIGRAEANNEEHLEN -

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, trade payables were

denominated in Singapore dollars.

M2019% 201812 A31H  B5JE

RIR T AR D TTRHE
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e BEHREARNTE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

24. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued) 24. EFEMNFIEGE)
Ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date as at REEARIZBEZEQENE 5 EN I
the end of the reporting period is as follows: BRER DT -
2019 2018
2019 20184
S$$°000 S$'000

TH#IET TR

0 to 30 days 0E30K 1,898 2,754
31 to 90 days 31E9OKX 566 12
2,464 2,766

25. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 25. E5tE A - HEENIRERE K

RECEIVED He
2019 2018
20194 20184
S$'000 S$'000
F Frhn3g 7o TR T
Accrued operating expenses (Note) FERTE B (FsE) 982 1,490
Other payables H M ERFUR 997 1,257
Deposits received 2R E 773 786
2,752 3,633
Add: Deposits received n: 2uiRe
(Non-current portion) GERBES) 189 259
2,941 3,792
Notes: As at 31 December 2019, accrued operating expenses mainly BisE © 72019F 12 A31H @ [EFT L ERT EE 45
represented the accrued staff costs of approximately $S$853,000 (2018: &=t B TRKZK 49 853,000 ¥7 13 7T (2018 4F -
approximately S$1,251,000). #91,251,000 5 13 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVFEmRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

26. BORROWINGS

26. &

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
S$$°000 S$'000
F Fhn3g o TR T
Borrowings in current portion: BIER DA
Secured mortgage loans ERBIRIBER 2,310 2,040
Term loans TEIED 1,210 4,403
Working capital loans BEESEN 15 15
3,635 6,458
Borrowings in non-current portion: JEENEfER S ERK :
Secured mortgage loans BIIFIRBE R 48,709 37,022
Term loans THEXR 2,267 5,487
Working capital loans LEEASEN 1,640 2,425
52,616 44,934
56,151 51,392
2019 2018
2019 20184
Effective floating interest rate BERIZEF=E
Secured mortgage loans EHEFIRBEER 2.18%-2.86% 1.68%-2.63%
Term loans THER 2.18%-3.17%  1.92%-3.22%
Working capital loans BEECEXN 2.76%-3.24%  2.35%-2.99%
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I Ry =

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

200

26. B (&)

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
S$°000 S$'000

FHMFT — THIET

Analysis by payment term: RS KHAR 247

Within one year or on demand —FRRIREK 3,535 6,458

In the second year MNE—F 2,509 3,459

In the third to fifth years, inclusive REZZHF (BIEERMT) 7,372 7,279

Beyond 5 years B b5 F 42,735 34,196
56,151 51,392

Note: As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the borrowings of approximately

N

S$56,151,000 (2018: approximately S$51,392,000) were secured by the
pledge of certain Group'’s (i) property plant and equipment (note 17), (i)
investment properties (note 16), (iii) future rental income, (iv) personal
guarantee of Mr. Chu; and (v) corporate guarantee of the Company and
its subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e IR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 31 HiIFF/&E

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEEE

As at 31 December 2019
A2019%F12A31H

Present
value of Total
the minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments

RIEEE RIEESE
NRWHRE TRBE
S$°000 S$'000
FHIET — FHIKT

Within 1 year —FR 1,072 1,100
After 1 year but within 2 years —F LA ERFAA 568 574

1,640 1,674
Less: total future interest expenses SR ARIRF BB e EE (34)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBBRE 1,640

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2019 FF 2




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REFEmRME(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

28. SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of share capital of the Company are as

28. KA

AATRABBHZBOT

follows:
Number of
shares Amount
B EE G
HK$'000 S$'000
FAT FEINSE T
Authorised: ETE
As at 13 March 2018 201853 A13H
(date of incorporation), (M) -
31 December 2018, 2018F 12 A31A K
1 January 2019 20191 A1H
Ordinary Share of HK$0.01 each SREEC.O1ATERR
(Note (a)) (F7 (@) 38,000,000 380 67
Increase of ordinary shares (Note (b)) 3@ RE A0 (Ff5E (b)) 9,962,000,000 99,620 17,601
As at 31 December 2019 A2019%F 12 A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000 17,668
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
Issue of share upon incorporation 20183 A13H
on 13 March 2018 (Gaiizavrd=))
(date of incorporation) (Note (a)) SR B B TR D (P EE (a) 100 —* —*
As at 31 December 2018 and K2018F 12 A31H K
1 January 2019 20191 81H 100 -* —*
Issue of shares under capitalisation BEE R BITET
issue (Note (b)) Bt (H3E (b)) 599,999,900 5,999 1,036
Issue of new shares by way of FRRMBERETT
share offer (Note (c)) iz (FI5E(c) 200,000,000 2,000 345
As at 31 December 2019 R2019% 12 A31H 800,000,000 8,000 1,381

* The balance represents an amounts less than S$1,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/ﬁaﬂﬁfﬁ&%ﬁtrﬂ£<n\/\>

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

l\‘/T\

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

29.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company was incorporated on 13 March 2018 with an authorised
share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each and the Reorganisation was only completed on 5 September 2018,
hence, the paid-in capital in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018 was HK$1.

The share capital shown in the statement of financial position
represents the share capital of the Company after Reorganisation.

Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all the shareholders of the
Company on 1 February 2019, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$380,000 to HK$100,000,000 by the
creation of a further 99,620,000,000 Shares. Pursuant to the
capitalisation issue of the Company passed by all the shareholders of
the Company on 1 February 2019, additional 599,999,900 shares were
allotted and issued.

The Company was successfully listed on the Main of the Stock
Exchange on 6 March 2019 by way of share offer of 20,000,000 public
offer share and 180,000,000 placing shares respectively at the offer
price of HK$0.75 per share, the net proceeds were approximately
HK$110,000,000. The proceeds were proposed to be used to finance
the implementation plan as set forth in the section headed “Future
Plans and use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

RESERVES

(a)

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current year and prior year
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

iR (48)
f i

(a) ARARNR2018F3 A13BEMA (EETE
fi% 78 43 380,000 7% 7T+ 9 438,000,000 %
BREMEO0.01 BTG ) REHEN 20184
9ASHA TR At ' SRAMBIRARAE
AR AR 2018412 A31HA1BTT °

BISAROR R PRI AN EARR A R B HIARA

(b) RIEARRIMERRENR2019F2 A1 HAB
METMRER  NARKVEERARE—H

iE £ 99,620,000,000 % &% 17 i F3 380,000 7%

# 25 100,000,000 % 7T © IR IE A QA 7 2 88
&iﬁézomizm AimBANAQRERE

1T BN B K E47599,999,900 Bkt ©

() RRATIER2019F3 A6 AU EREEE0.75
7 JT B £ 20,000,000 % A B B & K9 &
180,000,000 % B2 & A% {5 75 Bk 32 BT E AR K TH
T FTSFIEFEEXY A 110,000,000 T ©
BEGERERNEBRER [ RKGT
BIRFISH AR — &P rERIERITEE -

29. f#E
(a) f&fE
AREERBEBANCBRERAFE

R E—EENED - BRGAES
cDEL R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 A31 HiFF/Z

29. RESERVES (Continued) 28. MR (#&)
(b) Statement of changes in equity of the (b) EATEZEEHR
Company

Share  Accumulated

premium losses Total
Wi 8 RitERE st
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

FTHmBoT  TEIRTT  THNET

As at 13 March 2018 R201843 A13H

(Date of Incorporation) GaliipavA=k:c)) = = =
Loss and total comprehensive HRNEE R

loss for the period FHEEBERE - (2,265) (2,265)
As at 31 December 2018 and MN2018F12A31B R

1 January 2019 20191 A1H = (2,265) (2,265)
Issue new shares pursuant to REBEERNLELT

capitalisation issue BITHRG, (1,036) - (1,036)
Issue new shares pursuant to BERGFEETT

the share offer i) 25,637 - 25,637
Transaction costs attributable to BITHIR D LG

issue of new shares LG (2,893) - (2,893)
Loss and total comprehensive FAREER

loss for the year FHEBBRBE - (2,182) (2,182)
As at 31 December 2019 72019 12A31H 21,708 (4,447) 17,261
As at 31 December 2019, the Company had R2019F 12 A31H » A A A Al 9 k
distributable reserves of approximately S$17,261,000 1 1 #917,261,000 £ Hn 3 7T (2018 4F -
(2018: Nil) calculated in accordance with the Company E)RERSEHEAREAE 22%(1961
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and FEIGED - &irE RIEE]ETE

revised) of the Cayman Islands.

204 K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

an\ 7}7%#&?& Bﬁ E\E (,ZE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

30. COMPANY'’'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

30. AQBFHMREK

2019 2018
2019 % 20184
Notes S$'000 S$'000

B &E FHMET — THIET

Non-current asset IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB AR ZIRE =% =¥
_x _*
Current assets REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries = NGIE /S 18,769 -
Prepayments and deposits paid ENREREES - 592
Cash and bank balance Re RIRTTHEH 93 -
18,862 592
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals FEEtER 220 -
Amount due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE /S - 2,857
220 2,857
Net current assets and net liabilities B EEFER FEE 18,642 (2,265)
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital R A 28 1,381 —*
Reserves 1 29(b) 17,261 2,265
Total equity RS 18,642 2,265
* The balance represents an amount less than S$1,000. * ERRIESE DT 1,000 F AN T ©

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 27 March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)

REBELE

Chairman and Executive Director

FERPTEF

R202053 A27 BESE St & N IRE
FE: - WA T EEREES

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)
BE=rt
Executive Director

HITEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR B mRMETE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % 20194 12 431 A F/Z
31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(a) As lessor
Future minimum lease rental receivables under non-

cancellable operating leases of the Group as at the
reporting dates are as follows:

31. KEHERE

(a)

EREBEA

RNEBNWE BHBREBET A HEEL
EHENRRZER S EKFIER
™~

2019 2018
2019 5 20184
S$'000 S$'000

FHMFT — THIET

Within one year —FR 3,584 3,446
Within two to five years “ERFNR 1,513 1,185
5,097 4,631

Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor,
relate to investment property owned by the Group with
lease terms of between 1 to 3 years. All operating lease
contracts contain market review clauses in the event
that the lessee exercises its option to renew. The
lessee does not have an option to purchase the
property at the expiry of the lease period.
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/T\

B ISR RM T (B8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

As lessee

Future minimum rental payables under non-cancellable
operating lease of the Group as at 31 December 2018
are as follows:

*ﬁhﬁ‘ﬂ% (llﬁ)

(b) fEREMEA

AREBP20184 12 A 31 HIEET
AIRE A 2 E N AR RREENTE
ST

2018
20184
S$'000
TR T

Within one year —FA
Within two to five years “E=HFR

3,685
1,034

4,619

The Group leases food establishments under non-

cancellable operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of 1 to 5 years, with options to renew the lease
terms upon expiry when all terms are re-negotiated.
The above table excludes any contingent rentals.

AEBEREBENAIHEEEHOEE
RE - HEMTIREMS1E65F
EERERGEEELY - B
EFEAMMAGR - LRBABRE
ERRAES -
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B BHRRWE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

32.

208

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidation financial statements, the following transactions
took place between the Group and related parties at terms
agreed between the parties:

(a) Compensation of key management personnel
Compensation of key management personal of the

Group, including directors’ remuneration as detailed in
note 11 above.

32. EEBARS
MIFEMBRREMBOMBEENER
G+ AN B B B B U5 TR A B U5 15 TE O I
TCETUATR S -

(a) FTEEEBERBAEZHE

FEBTEEREABZHE
RV B ESEH -

2019 2018
20194 20184
S$'000 S$'000

FHMFT — THINHT

Directors’ fees E=0e 40 480
Salaries and bonuses He MIEAT 896 381

Contributions to defined contribution  EXEMFGRIKET 2R H R
retirement plan 38 57
974 918

The remuneration of directors and key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals.

(b) During the year, Mr. Chu has entered into personal

guarantee agreements to secure mortgage loans and
working capital loans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRM (8

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

33. REFIEAINEMTAH

RBEMRNE SR T ABERREED

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T~
2019 2018
2019 20184
S$'000 S$'000
T # i T FHE N IT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets carried at amortised costs: 1Z#ES4RL N B BER & Bt B2 -
— Trade and other receivables — B S5 RHEAMmEWRGRIE 1,064 532
— Deposits paid —BEfFe 1,837 2,630
— Pledged bank deposit — BIEBRITER 15 15
— Cash and cash equivalents —BHekBReEEY 11,688 4,911
14,604 8,088
2019 2018
2019 20184
S$'000 S$'000
T # i T FHE T
Financial liabilities cHas
Financial liabilities measured HHE AT E B A -
at amortised cost:
— Trade payables — B S ENKIE 2,464 2,766
— Accruals, other payables and —EFTER - HMEERERE
deposits received Ws 4 2,941 2,302
— Borrowings — & 56,151 51,392
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 1,640 -
63,196 56,460
Vi
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B BHRRWE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 A31 HiFF/Z

34.

35.

210

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade and other receivables, deposits paid, pledged
bank deposit, and cash and cash equivalents and the Group's
financial liabilities, including trade payables, accruals, other
payables and deposits received, and borrowings and lease
liabilities, approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities. The nominal values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity
of less than one year are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group and the Company for similar financial
instruments.

No analysis is disclosed since the Group has no financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value at the end of the year. There were no
transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its
operations and the use of financial instruments. The key
financial risks include credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's
exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the
objectives, policies and processes for the management of
these risks.
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S BHRWE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk concentration profile

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The major classes of financial assets
of the Group are cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposit, other financial assets and trade and other
receivables. For trade receivables, the Group adopts the
policy of dealing only with customers of appropriate
credit history. For other financial assets, the Group
adopts the policy of dealing only with high credit quality
counterparties.

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum
exposure to credit risk for each class of financial
instruments is the carrying amount of that class of
financial instruments presented on the statement of
financial position.

The Group assesses concentration of credit risk by
monitoring the individual profile of its trade receivables
on an ongoing basis.

At 31 December 2019, approximately 11.49% (2018:
approximately 65.7%) of the Group's trade receivables
were due from the top five customers.

35 BIEREEEERBE (&)

EEEHEKRER
(a) =ERK

EERBEHF I RBETEANE
EMEBAREAERMEEBERNE
c AEENTESREEENR
ReMREFEY DERRTE
B REE  BHREME
WkTH - LB 5 RYGRIAME © &
SERMNBREEREELES
BENEPRS - iEMEREEM
5 ARERMNBRREEREE
BEEaNHFIRS -

HRANE B RIFH KRR -
WEeHITAENESEERR
AR M ZER SR
TAKRMAEE -

NEBBRIFEZITEE S RIGK
Eﬂﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁﬂm$$%
iﬂlo

A2019%12 A31H - AEEEWK

ARBEFMNESREBAKEYD
11.49% (20184 : 4765.7%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z20194F 12 A31 HiFF/Z

l\‘/T\

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

212

Credit risk concentration profile (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables

The Group applies simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. Based on
historical experience, majority of trade receivables
were settled within credit term and the Group
receive sufficient deposit from these customer,
hence the expected loss rate of current trade
receivables is assessed to be approximately to
zero, no loss allowance on trade receivable was
recognised.

A default on receivables are when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments
within 90 days of when they fall due. Financial
assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group and
the amount due is significantly larger than the
deposit receive by the Group. The Group
categories a receivable for write off when a debtor
fails to make contractual payments greater than
180 days and the receivables is larger than the
deposit receive by the Group. Where receivables
have been written off, the Group continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable due. When recoveries are
made, these are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk concentration profile (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets at amortised costs

In respect of other financial assets, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents, the credit
risk is considered to be low as the counterparties
are reputable banks and insurance company
incorporated in the Singapore with high credit
ratings. The existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past. Therefore, ECL rate of other
financial assets, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents is assessed to be close to
zero and no provision was made as at 31
December 2018 and 2019.

Other receivables was mainly related to raw
material suppliers’ incentive receivable from multi-
national companies or listed company. As a result,
the directors assessed the expected loss rate of
other receivables was immaterial. Thus, no loss
allowance for other receivables was recognised as
at 31 December 2018 and 2019.

For deposits paid, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of deposits
based on historical settlement records and past
experience. The management committee
members of the Company believe that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Company’s
outstanding balance of deposits.

35. BrismbsEIE B R R BUER ()

FESTERER (H)

(a) FERR S

(ii) #2352 5 RR 1Y H o & Bl
BE

REMESMEE  DHEIFR
TERERERIFESEEY
mE - AREFHAEMNAR
IRPEF I EMA NS
EEFLARBAT  BIER
EEERBREE - REHTF
FRATEENGLH A
It Hibe@MEE - BT
BIEREASRESEE
YR TE AR E B 1B R &R
T AT RR2018F &
2019412 A31 H I K5t 18
s -

Efb U sRIBEE ZHREM R
HEEEWMNEBERRRKE
MARIMEREH - Bt
FEET M EMERZKIBENTE
BB BRI REK - Al
R 20184 2019412 A 31
B - 30 R E R N SRIR
R EEE -

pEefHemns  ERER
BBEAEECHEIBEELER
B SRS AU E 1 E
SR EREAIFE - AR
AEEZBEXRBRA K
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
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Credit risk concentration profile (Continued)

(b)

Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate borrowings and
balance due to changes of interest rate.

The directors of the Company consider the
Group's exposures in relation to the bank balance
are not significant as interest bearing bank balance
have short maturity period and thus they are not
included in sensitivity analysis.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, management
closely monitors its exposure to future cash flow
interest rate risk as a result of changes in market
interest rates will consider hedging changes in
market interest rates should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management note 35(c).

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019,
if the interest rate on all variable-rate borrowings
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's profit
for the year would have been decreased/increased
by approximately SGD514,000 and SGD549,000,
respectively.

K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2019

35.

MEEREER S

&E&ﬁi (nﬁ)

FESTRARER (&)

(b) iR

(i)

FIEmEE
MRH RS NEBEAX
HYRRBEMEHRARNE

ﬁmbiﬂl‘:@k@ °

ARBEERAE A&KEH
WITHBRBENRERIL T E
KX RERFBIRITHEHD
IR RS - Ak mE A
BUREDHTE °

NS5 18 B A4 A A F) R

PRI o T EEEAﬁi%ﬂ
22E EEERENER
ﬁ\ﬁﬁnum*;ﬁiﬁiumgﬁj

R TeRAEFERER
HRTIS N R EE o

REENFE BN ERR
HINTREE SRR E IR
7 35(c) °

20184 12 A31 H & 2019
F12A318 - MATBEZEME
BEMFEEFHTHE100E
AR MAE EMEERE

T AR EBARF E & A
H“‘E\ A1 h149514,000
b 3% ot K 549,000 #7 h0 3%

JC °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
n‘/T\ =) Eﬁﬁ#&%ﬁfj IIIE (Il\/\)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk concentration profile (Continued)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of each of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in
existence at that date. The 100-basis point
increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the
next reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis during the reporting period.

Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary
assets (including bank balances) denominated in
currencies other than functional currency of the
respective group entity at the end of each
reporting period are as follows:

35 BIEREEEERBE (&)

FESHRRER (&)

(b) iR ()

(i) FEmEpE (&)
RS (&)

J:L‘EE&Z BRENTRERRN

ERHENEREERBA
BERBRZEGENEE
FIREREBERTHE - +

Tk TEE100EEH R RE
EESEE MERSHER
I & IR AT BE A R BBy 57

HKD BT

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.

e RIEBRN  ZPIMIK
FERIEZEHETT o

(ii) B
REREHERANSEB TR
Iﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁwﬁ\\iéﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁmm

EREE(RRBRITE

ﬁ%)ﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁu?:

2019 2018
2019 % 20184
$$'000 S$'000

T # s T TFHE N IT

5,751 -

Kﬁlﬁﬁﬁjfﬁﬁl\li%ﬁﬁlﬂﬂl

AR AEEEEEE
9\\I:}_HSA RIS S-S
Ej%)“q%ﬁﬁikﬁl\liﬂ R e
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
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Credit risk concentration profile (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's
sensitivities to a 10% increase and decrease in
the functional currency of the group against
relevant foreign currency. 10% is the sensitivity
rate which represents management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
currency rate. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding HKD denominated monetary
items and adjusted their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 10 % change. A positive
number indicates an increase in profit for the year
HKD strengths 10% against S$. For a 10%

35.

Ejﬁiﬂlzﬁmfia &E&ﬁi(nﬂ)

FESTRRER (&)

(b)

WS ()

(i) BE#mEbg (&)

BN E T

TRENAEBNETE K
EEINEREREE10% 8
BURRTE © 10% B8R E b K
REEEEBHINEEERNEG
ﬁT““@%%% BRE
SMEBRESAEENSET
SHEEIEE  YRIRES
KAI0% BEHAEELHE -
IF 8RR ARG 20 B 58 00
BT F IS T AE10% °
¥ ¥ i AT &
10% @ Bl @ HKRFERFE

weakening of S$ against HKD, there would be an HEEREERSSE -
equal but opposite impact on the profit for the
year.
2019 2018
2019 20184F
S$'000 S$'000
F N3 T TN T
HKD BT -/+50 N/A 3 A

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at
the end of each reporting period do not reflect the
exposure during the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Group's approach to
managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, such as maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents as disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk concentration profile (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the
Group's financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted repayment obligations.

As at 31 December 2019

MERERERBERBX &)

FEETRRER (&)

(c) RBEZRER ()
TRBAMRIESHRITREREE
AEEEBAENEIHRER -

A2019512H31H

Weighted On More than More than Total
average demand 1 year nut 2 year but undiscounted
effective or within less than less than Over cash Carrying
interest rate 1year 2 years 5 years 5 years flows amount
KR
MEFS REX BiB1F BiB2% ReRE
BRAE F1ER BOR2E BEORSE BB5E Lk REE
% $$°000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$°000 $$°000
%  FHEmET  FHEEHET 0 FHMET O FEMET FEMRRT FEDRR
Financial liabilities: tRERE:
Trade payables BHERE - 2,464 - - - 2,464 2,464
Accruals, other payables  [ESTE - Eft
and deposits received  [ERTFUBRE WS - 2,941 - - - 294 2,941
Borrowings EES 247 4,841 4,035 11,880 55,752 76,508 56,151
Lease liabilities HERE 292 1,100 574 - - 1674 1,640
11,346 4,609 11,880 55,752 83,587 63,196
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%F 12 A31H
Weighted On More than More than Total
average demand 1 year nut 2 year but undiscounted
effective or within less than less than Over cash Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years flows amount
RER
METH REX B B2 Beng
Tk RIER EOSR2E ESRGE Bih5E &% A
% S$'000 $$'000 $$'000 S$$'000 S$'000 S$'000
%  FEmET O FTEMET O FEMET TRt TEIgT TR
.
Financial liabilities: ~ $M&E%E:
Trade payables BHEMTE - 2,766 - - - 2,766 2,766
Accruals, other payables  [E:t &R - Hit
and deposits received ~ ENFIEREYES - 2,302 - - - 2,302 2,302
Borrowings BR 241 7,484 4,454 9717 40,768 62,423 51,392
12,552 4,454 9717 40,768 67,491 56,460
y o
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36.

37.

218

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 36. EAEE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to AEBNEARAER G ERNEIFEE LM
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to EEHETYE HMREEUHEELES 2
shareholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity £ ﬁi%ﬂxii EHRARTR - REBER
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged B BEAFERETE - KEH
throughout the year. The capital structure of the Group E’JéZIX %@% BB (B ERH 261
consists of debt, which includes borrowings, as disclosed in BEREFHRETESR MRS IAEE
note 26, net of bank balances and cash and equity attributable BEAEERES(BHERARRER
to owners of the Group, comprising share capital and retained F)) o REBEIER RN EARNZERH -
earnings. The management of the Group reviews the capital BRAKRTMET —BATEEERMEN
structure from time to time. As a part of this review, the BRARESEEN Y EORE - BiEEIE
management considers the cost of capital and the risks E’J?’E%@fﬁ C  REBFE BT MR
associated with each class of capital. Based on BT R EES R E AR
recommendations of the management, the Group will balance % °
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
the issue of new shares and new debts.
PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. B ATFHE
Upon completion of the Reorganisation, the company REHATKE - ARFIKEAETHRAEH
becomes the holding company of the companies listed TR AT o PAANERAS HER - RAQF A
below. As at the date of this report, the Company has direct THB AR EA B & K B
and indirect equity interests in the following subsidiaries:
Issued and  Attributable equity
fully paid interest and
share capital voting power held by
registered the Company
capital at AT EERER
Place and date of the date of P RRE
Name of subsidiaries incorporation this report 2019 2018  Principal activities
REEE R
ERITRBRE
HEARERE MRt 2 A R 1 B 2019 20184 EIEEH
% %
Directly held:
HERF:
Entire Courage Limited British Virgin Island US$1 100 100 Investment holdings
("BVI"),
15 November, 2017
Entire Courage Limited REBEUES 1%L 100 100 HEER
(XBREZHEE])
2017% 11 B15H
Eastern Native Limited BV, US$1 100 100  Investment holding
30 January, 2018
Eastern Native Limited RBREUES - 1%L 100 100 &REER

201841 H30H
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37. MBS (&)

Issued and Attributable equity
fully paid interest and
share capital voting power held by
registered the Company
capital at AT EERER
Place and date of the date of PR F®E
Name of subsidiaries incorporation this report 2019 2018  Principal activities
RAHE RS
ERTRAR
HELRERE AR 2 A A MR 2019F 20184 EIEEH
% %
Indirectly held:
BiEEH
Fu Chan F&B Group Pte. Ltd. Singapore, $$500,000 100 100  The ownership and
10 December, 2009 operation of food
centres, and
management of food
and beverage stalls
Fu Chan F&B Group Pte. Ltd. B - 500,000 %7 i3 7T 100 100 HARLEERFL -
2009 12 A10H AR E IR ERIEN
Fu Chan (100FC) Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  General Management
8 August, 2010
Fu Chan (100FC) Pte. Ltd. FTng - 1T TT 100 100 —MER
201068 A8H
U Property Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore S$1,000,000 100 100 The ownership and
12 December, 2008 operation of food
centres
U Property Holdings Pte. Ltd. i 1,000,000 7 03 7T 100 100 HAERLLEERFBL
200812 A 12H
CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$270,000 100 100 The ownership and
5 May, 2005 operation of food
centres, and
operation of food and
beverage stalls
CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd. g 270,000 303K T 100 100 HERLEEERFBL -
20066 5HA5HR VAR 45 B SRR L
FC 883 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, $$10,000 100 100  The ownership and
18 March, 2015 operation of food
centres, and
operation of food and
beverage stalls
FC 883 Pte. Ltd. E) 1b 10,000 ¥ N3 7T 100 100 HEREEERDLD
20153 A 18 H VAR A8 S B SRR AL
Fu Chan F&B Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$300,000 100 100  The ownership and
29 January, 2004 operation of food
centres
Fu Chan F&B Pte. Ltd. EN 300,000 # A% T 100 100 HEREEERHD

200441 74298
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38 MTE/_\j?F(H‘E)

Issued and  Attributable equity
fully paid interest and
share capital voting power held by
registered the Company
capital at ERRELRER
Place and date of the date of FisRRE
Name of subsidiaries incorporation this report 2019 2018  Principal activities
RAHE RS
BRTRAR
HELRRRE AEMA S 26 A RAGEMBRA 20197 20184 EIEEH
% %
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiEEHE | (&)
Fu Chan (23) F&B Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$$160,000 100 100  The operation of food
16 May, 2005 and beverage stalls
Fu Chan (23) F&B Pte. Ltd. s 160,000 % 13 7T 100 100 #EEERIEAL
200565 A 16 H
Master Coffee Cafe Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$100,000 100 100  The operation of food
26 May, 2009 and beverage stalls
Master Coffee Cafe Pte. Ltd. $T03% - 200945 A 100,000 % M4 7T 100 100 fEEERIEL
26 H
The Cosmopolitan F&B Pte. Ltd. Singapore, $$300,000 100 100  The operation of food
1 November, 2013 and beverage stalls
The Cosmopolitan F&B Pte. Ltd. g 300,000 FT 03 IT 100 100  EEERIEN
201311 A1 A
Lady Boss Kitchen Pte. Ltd. Singapore, $$50,000 100 100  The operation of food
16 May, 2013 and beverage stalls
Lady Boss Kitchen Pte.Ltd. CApIIE 50,000 #7034 7T 100 100 EREHIEN
201345 A8 16 H
FS 100 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and Beverage stalls
FS 100 Pte. Ltd. BN - 1310 7T 100 100 EEBEHRIEN
201543 A 18H
FS 200 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 200 Pte. Ltd. RO - 1ETI3E TT 100 100 AR EHIBL
20153 H18H
FS 300 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 300 Pte. Ltd. N - THTIETT 100 100 BB
201543 A18H
FS 400 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 400 Pte. Ltd. ETnsg - 1T T 100 100  EEEHIEA

201593 A 18H
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. B A RIS (&)

Issued and Attributable equity
fully paid interest and
share capital voting power held by
registered the Company
capital at AT EERER
Place and date of the date of PR F®E
Name of subsidiaries incorporation this report 2019 2018  Principal activities
RAHE RS
ERTRAR
HELRERE AR 2 A A MR 2019F 20184 EIEEH
% %
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiEEE | (&)
FS 500 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 500 Pte. Ltd. BN 1E KT 100 100 #EEBEHRIEN
201543 A18H
FS 600 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 600 Pte. Ltd. N - 1T 100 100  KEERER
201543 A 18H
FS 700 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 700 Pte. Ltd. RN - 13T 100 100 e EHRIEL
201563 H18H
FS 800 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 800 Pte. Ltd. NS 1 ¥ ST 100 100 EEERIEN
201543 A18H
FS 900 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 900 Pte. Ltd. i 13T 100 100 fEEEHRIEN
201543 A 18H
FS 881 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100 The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 881 Pte. Ltd. O - 13T T 100 100 AR EHIBL
20153 H18H
FS 882 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 882 Pte. Ltd. N - THSETT 100 100 EEERIEL
201543 A 18 H
FS 884 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 884 Pte. Ltd. RN 1ET KT 100 100 AEEERIERL

201593 A 18H
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37. MBS (&)

Issued and  Attributable equity
fully paid interest and
share capital voting power held by
registered the Company
capital at KRR ELRER
Place and date of the date of FisRRE
Name of subsidiaries incorporation this report 2019 2018  Principal activities
RAEHERD
ERITRAR
HEL AR A2 A A REMBEAR 20195 20184F EXEEH
% %
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiEEE (&)
FS 885 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100 The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 885 Pte. Ltd. RN TR T 100 100 AEEERIEL
201543 A 18H
FS 886 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 886 Pte. Ltd. 2N TR T 100 100 EEEHREN
201563 A 18H
LB 101 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
LB 101 Pte. Ltd. 0 - TN 100 100 fEEERRL
201543 A18H
Lady Boss Food Channel Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
18 March, 2015 and beverage stalls
Lady Boss Food Channel Pte. Ltd. #7013 - 13T 100 100 EREHEN
201543 A 18H
Winston's Recipe Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
16 December, 2013 and beverage stalls
Winston's Recipe Pte. Ltd. N 15703 7T 100 100  KREKER
2013912 H16H
Chu Dynasty Pte. Ltd. Singapore, S$1 100 100  The operation of food
15 February, 2016 and beverage stalls
Chu Dynasty Pte. Ltd. Fang 1 ¥ TT 100 100 EEEHEN

2016F2 A 15H
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38. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 38. £ERHEEE

Since January 2020, Coronavirus disease 2019
("COVID-19") across Singapore and other countries has
affected the usual business environment. Pending the
development of such subsequent non-adjusting event,
the Group's financial results may be affected, the extent
of which could not be estimated as at the date of this
report.

The address of the headquarters and principal place of
business in Singapore is changed to 51 Ubi Avenue 1,
#02-17/18 Paya Ubi Industrial Park, Singapore 408933,
with effect from 11 January 2020.

On 8 January 2020, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, CK Chu Holdings Pte Ltd (“CKC") was
granted options (the “Options”) by Mr. Thang Teck
Jong, Mr. Kong Ling Ting and Mengkim Holdings Pte.
Ltd. (“TKM"), who are independent third parties of the
Group, to purchase Units #01-02A, #01-02B, #01-02C,
#01-02E, #01-04A, #01-05A, #01- 05B, #01-05C and
#01-05P on Level 1 of People’'s Park Centre, 101 Upper
Cross Street, Singapore 058357 (“101 UCS"), pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the nine option
agreements for sale of 101 UCS (the “Option
Agreements”). Save as disclosed in the announcement
dated 14 February 2020, CKC exercised the Options
pursuant to the Option Agreements to acquire 101 UCS
from TKM at a total consideration of S$22,200,000. On
24 March 2020, the acquisition of 101 UCS was
completed and approximately S$4,440,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$25,619,000) was financed by the
net proceeds from the Share Offer. Details of the
financing are set out on page 11 of the circular dated 17
March 2020.

B 20204 1 A - 3Nk & E A B
R IE E M2019%T R B S R
(f[COVID-19)) EFE—ERD
RE - RTBREHEFAEFTENE
B AEBOTBEEREGTE
FE  RNAREBHNELGRE
EI2E o

FERRBRFEFELEEMIEE
/51 Ubi Avenue 1, #02-17/18
Paya Ubi Industrial Park, Singapore
408933 ' H2020F 1 A 11 HE A

R202051 A8H @ BIEHE 101
UCSHNMmBERE#EGE((BE
BEREBRD OB RELH
Thang Teck Jong 4t 4 - Kong Ling
Tingst 4 & Mengkim Holdings
Pte. Ltd. ([TKM] - K&EEF 7 5
ZH)IRFARR—BEEZENEB
A AICK Chu Holdings Pte Ltd
(fcKe) EEEER((EBERE
FE ) LAEE B AL 5 H 03 Upper
Cross Street 101 5% People’s Park
Centre 1##01-02A + #01-02B *
#01-02C - #01-02E * #01-04A -
#01-05A - #01-05B - #01-05C &
#01-06P % - # X 48 97058357
(o1 UCS)) - B AR EIHE A
2020F 2 R 14B 2 REFTHESE
SN CKCIRIEIE BB B R 1T(E
BEIRERE - LIAMRIE22,200,000
ik T B TKM UYL BE 101 UCS »
7202093 248 > 101 UCSW
B &K - i 494,440,000 7 N
¥ 7T (FEE 7 #925,619,0007% 7T )
AR B E TSR SRR - &
B EHN BB A202063 817
HEBEKE 118 ©

39. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. RETIRKRSYBEHR

GAMBEHRERDN202063 427 HESE
EHEW R AT o

The consolidated financial statement were approved and
authorised for issue by the Directors on 27 March 2020.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z=20194 12 31 HiF F/Z

For the five years ended 31 December 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and & 20154 - 2016 £ ~ 20174 - 20184F K&
2019: 201912 A31 BILABFE :

RESULTS ES

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20195 20184 2017 F 2016 20154
$$°000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

THMET THIMET  THIET  THIMET  THIRT

Revenue & 42,004 44,995 43,975 36,596 39,224
Profit before taxation MBS 5,461 4,370 6,101 6,381 4,098
Income tax expense SRS (303) (371) (590) (166) (124)
Profit for the year FRmF 5,158 3,999 5,511 6,215 3,974
Total profit and comprehensive ~ FRENEEE

income for the year Wesa%E 5,158 3,999 5,511 6,215 3,974

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERESE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20164 20154
$$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHmFET  FEMET  FEHMET O FEMET FEHNET
Total assets EELRE 128,560 95,519 96,743 89,238 71,977
Total liabilities BERAE 63,418 58,624 60,409 55,801 42,855
Total equity B 65,142 36,895 36,334 33,437 29,122
y_ \
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